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Item 2.01 Completion of Acquisition or Disposition of Assets.

On April 30, 2015, MaxLinear, Inc. (“MaxLinear”) completed its previously announced acquisition of Entropic Communications, Inc.
(“Entropic”), pursuant to that certain Agreement and Plan of Merger and Reorganization, dated as of February 3, 2015 (the “Merger
Agreement”), by and among Entropic, MaxLinear, Excalibur Acquisition Corporation (“Merger Sub One”), and Excalibur Subsidiary, LLC
(“Merger Sub Two”).

Pursuant to the terms of the Merger Agreement, Merger Sub One merged with and into Entropic, with Entropic continuing as the
interim surviving entity (the “Merger”). Promptly thereafter, Entropic merged with and into Merger Sub Two, with Merger Sub Two
continuing as the final surviving entity and changing its name to Entropic Communications, LLC. As a result of, and at the effective time
of, the Merger, each share of common stock of Entropic, par value $0.001 per share (the “Entropic Common Stock”), that was outstanding
immediately prior to the effective time of the Merger was converted into the right to receive (i) $1.20 in cash, without interest, and
(ii) 0.2200 of a share of MaxLinear Class A common stock, par value $0.0001 per share (the “MaxLinear Class A Common Stock”). No
fractional shares of MaxLinear Class A Common Stock will be issued in the Merger, and holders of shares of Entropic Common Stock will
receive cash in lieu of any such fractional shares.

The aggregate merger consideration payable or issuable, as applicable, by MaxLinear in connection with the Merger is approximately
$111.0 in cash and approximately 20.4 million newly issued shares of MaxLinear Class A Common Stock. In addition, in connection with
the Merger all of the stock options (whether or not exercisable or vested) and all of the restricted stock units that are solely subject to time-
based vesting (whether or not then vested or issuable) of Entropic, in each case, that were outstanding immediately prior to the effective of
the Merger and held by continuing service providers (as defined in the Merger Agreement), were assumed by MaxLinear and converted into
stock options and restricted stock units, respectively, denominated in shares of MaxLinear Class A Common Stock based on formulas set
forth in the Merger Agreement.

A significant portion of the cash component of the merger consideration was funded by Entropic’s cash and the remaining cash
component of the merger consideration was funded by MaxLinear’s cash.

The issuance of MaxLinear Class A Common Stock in connection with the Merger, as described above, was registered under the
Securities Act of 1933, as amended, pursuant to MaxLinear’s registration statement on Form S-4 (File No. 333-202679), filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) and declared effective on March 30, 2015 (the “Joint Proxy Statement/Prospectus”).

The foregoing description of the Merger Agreement and the transactions consummated pursuant to the Merger Agreement does not
purport to be complete and is qualified by its entirety by reference to the Merger Agreement, which was filed as Exhibit 2.1 to MaxLinear’s
Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on February 4, 2015, which is incorporated herein by reference.

 
Item 2.05 Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities.

In connection with MaxLinear’s acquisition of Entropic and to address issues primarily relating to the integration of the MaxLinear
and Entropic businesses, MaxLinear terminated the employment of 56 Entropic employees, effective as of May 1, 2015, and 6 Entropic
employees, effective as of May 6, 2015. MaxLinear currently expects to recognize associated non-recurring severance charges of
approximately $5 million in the quarter ending June 30, 2015 related to these terminations.

In addition, in connection with MaxLinear’s acquisition of Entropic, MaxLinear also expects to reduce its use of a portion of
Entropic’s facility in San Diego, California. MaxLinear expects to incur lease costs in connection with its reduction of use of such Entropic
facility, as described in more detail under Item 2.06 below.
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Item 2.06 Material Impairments

The information required to be disclosed in this Item 2.06 is included in Item 2.05 above and incorporated herein by reference. In
connection with actions referenced in Item 2.05 above, on April 30, 2015, MaxLinear concluded that it would be required under United
States generally accepted accounting principles to incur an impairment charge related to MaxLinear’s expected reduction in use of
Entropic’s facility in San Diego, California. MaxLinear is unable in good faith to make a determination of an estimate of this impairment
charge at the time of the filing of this Form 8-K. MaxLinear will file an amended report on Form 8-K after it makes a determination of an
estimate or range of estimates for the impairment charge or will include such determination in its Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended June 30, 2015.

Item 5.02 Departure of Directors or Certain Officers; Election of Directors; Appointment of Certain Officers; Compensatory
Arrangements of Certain Officers.

(d) Election of Directors

In accordance with the terms of the Merger Agreement, effective upon the consummation of the Merger, the size of MaxLinear’s
board of directors (the “Board”) was increased from 6 to 7 directors, and Theodore Tewksbury, Ph.D., a former director of Entropic and the
former interim president and chief executive officer of Entropic was appointed to the Board to fill the newly created vacancy as a Class II
director to serve until MaxLinear’s 2017 annual meeting of stockholders and until his successor is elected and qualified.

Dr. Tewksbury, age 58, served as interim president and chief executive officer of Entropic from November 2014 until MaxLinear’s
acquisition of Entropic in April 2015. Dr. Tewksbury also served as a director of Entropic from September 2010 through April 2015. From
2013 to November 2014, Dr. Tewksbury was an independent consultant to technology companies. From 2008 to 2013, Dr. Tewksbury
served as the president and chief executive officer and as a member of the board of directors of Integrated Device Technology, Inc., a
publicly traded, mixed signal semiconductor solutions company. Prior to joining Integrated Device Technology in 2008, he was the
president and chief operating officer of AMI Semiconductor, a mixed signal semiconductor company, from 2006 to 2008. Prior to that,
Dr. Tewksbury served as managing director at Maxim Integrated Products, Inc., a designer, manufacturer and seller of high-performance
semiconductor products, from 2000 to 2006. Dr. Tewksbury is a member of the board of directors of the Global Semiconductor Alliance.
Dr. Tewksbury holds a BS in Architecture and an MS and a Ph.D. in Electrical Engineering from the Massachusetts Institute of Technology.

Other than pursuant to the terms of the Merger Agreement, there was no other understanding or arrangement between Dr. Tewksbury
and any other person pursuant to which Dr. Tewksbury was appointed as a director of MaxLinear.

Concurrent with the consummation of the Merger, Dr. Tewksbury was terminated as the chief executive officer and president of
Entropic and ceased to be an employee of either Entropic or MaxLinear. Accordingly, pursuant to the terms of his amended and restated
change of control agreement with Entropic, subject to signing a general release of claims, Dr. Tewksbury will become entitled to receive
(i) $425,000 in a lump sum cash payment, less applicable withholding, which is equal to 12 months of his most recent base salary at
Entropic prior to completion of the Merger, (ii) full acceleration of vesting of all of his unvested stock options and restricted stock units
(other than performance stock units, which were canceled upon the effectiveness of the Merger), including those equity awards outstanding
under Entropic’s 2007 Non-Employee Directors’ Stock Option Plan and Entropic’s 2007 Equity Incentive Plan and (iii) reimbursement for
continuation of qualified heath care benefits under COBRA for 12 months, provided that he elects and continues to remain eligible for
COBRA coverage.

In addition, Dr. Tewksbury will enter into MaxLinear’s standard form of indemnification agreement, a copy of which has been filed
as Exhibit 10.1 to MaxLinear’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on November 6,
2009 (File No. 333-162947).
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As a non-employee director, Dr. Tewksbury will be entitled to compensation under MaxLinear’s policies for director compensation,
as revised in May of 2014.

Under MaxLinear’s cash compensation policy, each non-employee director receives a base annual retainer of $40,000. In addition,
MaxLinear’s lead director receives an additional annual retainer of $25,000. Committee members receive additional annual cash
compensation as follows: audit committee, $10,000; compensation committee, $7,500; and nominating and governance committee, $5,000.
Committee chairs receive, in addition to their compensation for being committee members, the following: audit committee, $20,000;
compensation committee, $15,000; nominating and governance committee, $10,000; and strategy development committee chair, $10,000.

In accordance with MaxLinear’s equity compensation policy for non-employee directors and MaxLinear’s 2010 Equity Incentive
Plan, on April 30, 2015, Dr. Tewksbury was granted an aggregate of 12,930 shares of MaxLinear Class A Common Stock (a portion of
which will vest, assuming continued service, on May 1, 2015, and the remainder of which will vest, assuming continued service, in three
annual installments on each of April 30, 2016, 2017, and 2018). Commencing with MaxLinear’s 2015 annual meeting of stockholders,
Dr. Tewksbury is also eligible to receive an “annual award” of MaxLinear Class A Common Stock with a fair value at issuance of
approximately $110,000 (vesting, assuming continued service, on the earlier to occur of the next succeeding May 1 or the date immediately
preceding the next annual meeting of stockholders).

The foregoing is only a brief description of the material terms of MaxLinear’s non-employee director compensation program, and is
qualified in its entirety by reference to the description of MaxLinear’s non-employee director compensation program under the heading
“Compensation of Non-Employee Directors” in MaxLinear’s definitive proxy statement on Schedule 14A, filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on April 23, 2015 and incorporated herein in its entirety by reference.

 
Item 5.07 Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders.

A special meeting of the stockholders (the “Special Meeting”) of MaxLinear was held on April 30, 2015. The purpose of the Special
Meeting was to submit to a vote of MaxLinear’s stockholders as of the close of business on March 30, 2015 (the record date for the Special
Meeting), (i) a proposal to approve the issuance of shares of MaxLinear’s Class A common stock in the Merger pursuant to the terms of the
Merger Agreement (the “Stock Issuance Proposal”), and (ii) a proposal to adjourn the Special Meeting if necessary or advisable to permit
further solicitation of proxies in the event there are not sufficient votes at the time of the Special Meeting to approve the Stock Issuance
Proposal.

At the Special Meeting, the Stock Issuance Proposal was approved by a majority of the votes cast and, accordingly, the proposal to
adjourn the Special Meeting was not submitted for a vote.

According to the report of the inspector of election, the holders of a total of 29,258,730 shares of MaxLinear capital stock, consisting
of 23,180,564 shares of Class A Common Stock and 6,078,166 shares of Class B Common Stock, representing approximately 76.4% of the
outstanding shares entitled to vote, were present in person or represented by proxy at the Special Meeting.
 

 1. Proposal to approve the issuance of shares of MaxLinear Class A Common Stock in the Merger pursuant to the terms of the
Merger Agreement.

 
For   Against   Abstain   Broker Non-Votes

29,188,241   42,899   27,590   —  
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Item 9.01 Financial Statements and Exhibits.

(a) Financial Statements of Business Acquired.

Entropic’s Audited Consolidated Financial Statements, including the Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2014 and
December 31, 2013 and the related Consolidated Statements of Operations, Comprehensive (Loss) Income, Stockholder’s Equity and Cash
Flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2014, accompanying notes, and schedule contained in Entropic’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2014, as filed with the SEC on February 24, 2015, are attached as
Exhibit 99.1 hereto and incorporated herein by reference. The consent of Ernst & Young LLP, Entropic’s independent auditor, is attached
as Exhibit 23.1 hereto.

(b) Pro Forma Financial Information.

The unaudited pro forma combined financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2014 and explanatory notes,
giving effect to the Merger, as required by this Item 9.01(b) with respect to the Merger and Item 2.01 of this Form 8-K were included in
MaxLinear’s registration statement on Form S-4 filed with the SEC on March 25, 2015, and are re-filed in their entirety as Exhibit 99.2
hereto and incorporated herein by reference.

(d) Exhibits.
 
Exhibit

No.   Description of Exhibit

  2.1

  

Agreement and Plan of Merger and Reorganization, dated as of February 3, 2015, by and among MaxLinear, Inc., a Delaware
corporation, Entropic Communications, Inc., a Delaware corporation, Excalibur Acquisition Corporation, a Delaware
corporation and wholly-owned subsidiary of MaxLinear, Inc., and Excalibur Subsidiary, LLC, a Delaware limited liability
company and wholly-owned subsidiary of MaxLinear (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to the Current Report on Form
8-K (File No. 001-34666) filed with the SEC on February 4, 2015).

23.1   Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.

99.1

  

Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of Entropic Communications, Inc., including the Consolidated Balance Sheets as of
December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013 and the related Consolidated Statements of Operations, Comprehensive (Loss)
Income, Stockholder’s Equity and Cash Flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2014,
accompanying notes, and schedule.

99.2
  

Unaudited pro forma combined financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2014, giving effect to the
Merger.

Forward-Looking Statements

This communication contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended,
and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. Forward-looking statements contained in this Current Report on
Form 8-K or in the exhibits attached hereto include, among others, statements concerning MaxLinear’s completion of the acquisition of
Entropic; expected restructuring costs and impairment charges; the prospects for the combined company; and the future growth of
Maxlinear. These forward-looking statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties, and other factors that may cause actual
results to be materially different from any future results expressed or implied by the forward-looking statements. Forward-looking
statements are based on management’s current, preliminary expectations and are subject to various risks and uncertainties including the
following: the challenges and costs of integrating, restructuring, and achieving currently anticipated
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synergies; the ability to retain key employees, customers, and suppliers following completion of the Merger; and other factors generally
affecting the business, operations, and financial condition of MaxLinear, including the information contained in MaxLinear’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2014 (including Amendment No. 1 thereto filed with the SEC on March 12, 2015),
the Joint Proxy Statement/Prospectus, and subsequent Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, and other reports and filings with the SEC. All
forward-looking statements are expressly qualified in their entirety by this cautionary statement. MaxLinear does not undertake any
obligation to publicly update its forward-looking statements based on events or circumstances after the date hereof, except as required by
law.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its
behalf by the undersigned hereunto duly authorized.
 
Date: May 5, 2015  MAXLINEAR, INC.

 (Registrant)

 By: /s/ Adam C. Spice
  Adam C. Spice
  Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
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EXHIBIT INDEX
 
Exhibit

No.   Description of Exhibit

  2.1

  

Agreement and Plan of Merger and Reorganization, dated as of February 3, 2015, by and among MaxLinear, Inc., a Delaware
corporation, Entropic Communications, Inc., a Delaware corporation, Excalibur Acquisition Corporation, a Delaware
corporation and wholly-owned subsidiary of MaxLinear, Inc., and Excalibur Subsidiary, LLC, a Delaware limited liability
company and wholly-owned subsidiary of MaxLinear (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to the Current Report on Form
8-K (File No. 001-34666) filed with the SEC on February 4, 2015).

23.1   Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.

99.1

  

Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of Entropic Communications, Inc., including the Consolidated Balance Sheets as of
December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013 and the related Consolidated Statements of Operations, Comprehensive (Loss)
Income, Stockholder’s Equity and Cash Flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2014,
accompanying notes, and schedule.

99.2
  

Unaudited pro forma combined financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2014, giving effect to the
Merger.
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EXHIBIT 23.1

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

We consent to the incorporation by reference in the following Registration Statements:

(1) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-165770) pertaining to the 2010 Equity Incentive Plan and the 2010 Employee stock
Purchase Plan of MaxLinear, Inc.,

(2) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-172418) pertaining to the 2010 Equity Incentive Plan and the 2010 Employee stock
Purchase Plan of MaxLinear, Inc.,

(3) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-180666) pertaining to the 2010 Equity Incentive Plan and the 2010 Employee stock
Purchase Plan of MaxLinear, Inc.,

(4) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-187395) pertaining to the 2010 Equity Incentive Plan and the 2010 Employee stock
Purchase Plan of MaxLinear, Inc.

(5) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-194856) pertaining to the 2010 Equity Incentive Plan and the 2010 Employee stock
Purchase Plan of MaxLinear, Inc.

(6) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-203034) pertaining to the 2010 Equity Incentive Plan and the 2010 Employee stock
Purchase Plan of MaxLinear, Inc.

of our report dated February 23, 2015, with respect to the consolidated financial statements and schedule of Entropic Communications, Inc.,
included in this Form 8-K of MaxLinear, Inc.

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP

San Diego, California
April 30, 2015



Exhibit 99.1

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Stockholders

Entropic Communications, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Entropic Communications, Inc. as of December 31, 2014 and
2013, and the related consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive (loss) income, stockholders’ equity and cash flows for each of
the three years in the period ended December 31, 2014. Our audits also included the financial statement schedule at S-1. These financial
statements and schedule are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements and schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of
Entropic Communications, Inc. at December 31, 2014 and 2013, and the consolidated results of its operations and its cash flows for each of
the three years in the period ended December 31, 2014 in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Also, in our
opinion, the related financial statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole, presents
fairly in all material respects the information set forth therein.
 

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP

San Diego, California

February 23, 2015
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Entropic Communications, Inc.

Consolidated Balance Sheets

(in thousands, except per share data)
 
   December 31, 2014  December 31, 2013 
Assets    
Current assets:    

Cash and cash equivalents   $ 17,307  $ 16,298  
Marketable securities    79,397   71,922  
Accounts receivable, net    27,795   30,204  
Inventory    10,404   13,503  
Deferred tax assets, current    —     51  
Prepaid expenses and other current assets    7,337   18,739  

  

Total current assets  142,240  150,717  
Property and equipment, net  17,413  17,994  
Long-term marketable securities  9,126  69,534  
Intangible assets, net  33,588  47,326  
Goodwill  4,688  4,688  
Deferred tax assets, long-term  1,054  —    
Other long-term assets  2,806  5,001  

  

Total assets $ 210,915 $ 295,260  
  

Liabilities and stockholders’ equity
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable $ 7,210 $ 8,601  
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities  10,871  6,318  
Accrued payroll and benefits  8,387  7,077  

  

Total current liabilities  26,468  21,996  
Deferred rent  6,350  1,751  
Other long-term liabilities  1,837  1,688  
Commitments and contingencies
Stockholders’ equity:

Preferred stock, $0.001 par value; 10,000 authorized, no shares issued and
outstanding as of December 31, 2014 and 2013  —    —    

Common stock, $0.001 par value; 200,000 shares authorized; 90,904 shares issued
and outstanding as of December 31, 2014; 91,934 shares issued and 90,776
shares outstanding as of December 31, 2013  91  92  

Additional paid-in capital  505,900  487,007  
Treasury stock, 0 shares and 1,158 shares as of December 31, 2014 and 2013,

respectively  —    (5,455) 
Accumulated deficit  (329,906)  (212,273) 
Accumulated other comprehensive income  175  454  

  

Total stockholders’ equity  176,260  269,825  
  

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $ 210,915 $ 295,260  
  

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Entropic Communications, Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Operations

(in thousands, except per share data)
 
   Years Ended December 31,  
   2014   2013   2012  
Net revenues   $191,619  $259,376  $321,678  
Cost of net revenues    98,368   134,974   157,675  

  

Gross profit  93,251  124,402  164,003  
Operating expenses:

Research and development  117,234  114,536  98,353  
Sales and marketing  24,371  24,882  25,313  
General and administrative  23,258  22,415  25,474  
Amortization of intangibles  1,244  2,312  2,575  
Restructuring charges  12,375  1,694  897  
Impairment of assets  12,687  —    —    

  

Total operating expenses  191,169  165,839  152,612  
  

(Loss) income from operations  (97,918)  (41,437)  11,391  
Loss related to equity method investment  —    (1,115)  (3,315) 
Impairment of investment  —    (4,780)  —    
Other income, net  881  1,582  601  

  

(Loss) income before income taxes  (97,037)  (45,750)  8,677  
Income tax provision  1,087  20,404  4,157  

  

Net (loss) income $ (98,124) $ (66,154) $ 4,520  
  

Net (loss) income per share—basic $ (1.09) $ (0.73) $ 0.05  
  

Net (loss) income per share—diluted $ (1.09) $ (0.73) $ 0.05  
  

Weighted average number of shares used to compute net (loss) income per share—basic  89,783  90,494  88,164  
  

Weighted average number of shares used to compute net (loss) income per share—diluted  89,783  90,494  90,364  
  

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Entropic Communications, Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive (Loss) Income

(in thousands)
 
   Years Ended December 31,  
   2014   2013   2012  
Net (loss) income   $(98,124) $(66,154) $4,520  

Other comprehensive (loss) income, net of taxes:     
Change in foreign currency translation adjustment    (184)  339   37  
Available-for-sale investments:     

Change in net unrealized (loss) gain    (95)  (54)  227  
  

 (279)  285  264  
  

    
  

Comprehensive (loss) income $(98,403) $(65,869) $4,784  
  

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Entropic Communications, Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity

(in thousands)
 

  Common Stock   
Additional

Paid-In-Capital   
Treasury

Stock   
Accumulated

Deficit   

Accumulated Other
Comprehensive
Income (Loss)   

Total Shareholders’
Equity  

  Shares   Amount                
Balance as of December 31, 2011   87,160   $ 87   $ 448,440   $ —     $ (150,639)  $ (95)  $ 297,793  
Issuance of common stock upon

exercise of stock options for cash  938   1   2,159   —     —     —     2,160  
Excess tax benefit on stock option

exercises  —     —     362   —     —     —     362  
Stock-based compensation  —     —     14,614   —     —     —     14,614  
Issuance of common stock under

employee stock purchase plan  859   1   3,039   —     —     —     3,040  
Release of restricted stock units  175   —     (291)  —     —     —     (291) 
Issuance of common stock for

compensation  35   —     203   —     —     —     203  
Net income  —     —     —     —     4,520   —     4,520  
Unrealized gain on marketable

securities  —     —     —     —     —     227   227  
Translation adjustments  —     —     —     —     —     37   37  
Balance as of December 31, 2012  89,167  $ 89  $ 468,526  $ —    $ (146,119) $ 169  $ 322,665  
Issuance of common stock upon

exercise of stock options for cash  881   1   1,504   —     —     —     1,505  
Excess tax expense on stock option

exercises  —     —     (2,177)  —     —     —     (2,177) 
Stock-based compensation  —     —     16,774   —     —     —     16,774  
Issuance of common stock under

employee stock purchase plan  1,007   1   3,365   —     —     —     3,366  
Release of restricted stock units  879   1   (985)  —     —     —     (984) 
Purchase of treasury stock  (1,158)  —     —     (5,455)  —     —     (5,455) 
Net loss

 —     —     —     —     (66,154)  —     (66,154) 
Unrealized loss on marketable

securities  —     —     —     —     —     (54)  (54) 
Translation adjustments  —     —     —     —     —     339   339  
Balance as of December 31, 2013  90,776  $ 92  $ 487,007  $ (5,455) $ (212,273) $ 454  $ 269,825  
Issuance of common stock upon

exercise of stock options for cash  357   —     534   —     —     —     534  
Stock-based compensation  —     —     17,771   —     —     —     17,771  
Issuance of common stock under

employee stock purchase plan  1,229   1   3,253   —     —     —     3,254  
Release of restricted stock units  2,122   3   (2,670)  —     —     —     (2,667) 
Purchase of treasury stock  (3,580)  —     —     (14,054)  —     —     (14,054) 
Retirement of treasury stock  —     (5)  5   19,509   (19,509)  —     —    
Net loss  —     —     —     —     (98,124)  —     (98,124) 
Unrealized loss on marketable

securities  —     —     —     —     —     (95)  (95) 
Translation adjustments  —     —     —     —     —     (184)  (184) 
Balance as of December 31, 2014  90,904  $ 91  $ 505,900  $ —    $ (329,906) $ 175  $ 176,260  

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Entropic Communications, Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(in thousands)
 
   Years Ended December 31,  
   2014   2013   2012  
Operating activities:     
Net (loss) income   $(98,124) $ (66,154)  4,520  
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash (used in) provided by operating activities:     

Depreciation    7,321   8,060   5,474  
Amortization of intangible assets    12,113   11,910   8,403  
Impairment of assets    12,687   —     —    
Change in acquisition related contingent consideration liability    —     (131)  431  
Deferred taxes    (27)  24,183   (3,035) 
Excess tax expense on stock option exercises    —     2,177   (362) 
Stock-based compensation    17,771   16,774   14,817  
Amortization of premiums on investments    1,785   3,251   3,554  
Provision for excess and obsolete inventory    165   3,667   394  
Loss related to equity method investment    —     1,115   3,315  
Impairment of investment    —     4,780   —    
Loss (gain) on disposal of assets    516   (98)  (11) 
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:     

Accounts receivable    2,409   11,643   (7,885) 
Inventory    2,934   9,225   554  
Prepaid expenses and other current assets    7,440   (6,746)  7,219  
Other long-term assets    897   (2,238)  (336) 
Accounts payable    (1,387)  (2,777)  (181) 
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities    1,809   (837)  3,609  
Accrued payroll and benefits    1,384   (2,345)  3,151  
Deferred rent    4,976   1,070   (416) 
Other long-term liabilities    469   407   918  

  

Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities  (24,862)  16,936  44,133  
Investing activities:
Purchases of property and equipment  (12,048)  (8,333)  (9,061) 
Purchases of marketable securities  (22,918)  (104,123)  (108,891) 
Sales/maturities of marketable securities  73,983  111,073  150,289  
Net cash used in acquisitions  —    (13,025)  (84,806) 

  

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities  39,017  (14,408)  (52,469) 
Financing activities:
Net proceeds from the issuance of equity plan common stock, net of withholding tax  1,121  3,886  4,909  
Excess tax (expense) benefit on stock option exercises  —    (2,177)  362  
Purchase of treasury stock  (14,054)  (5,455)  —    

  

Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities  (12,933)  (3,746)  5,271  
  

Net effect of exchange rates on cash  (213)  310  78  
  

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  1,009  (908)  (2,987) 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period  16,298  17,206  20,193  

  

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 17,307 $ 16,298 $ 17,206  
  

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
  

Cash paid for income taxes $ 775 $ 1,329 $ 6,060  
  

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Entropic Communications, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
 
1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Business

Entropic Communications, Inc. was organized under the laws of the state of Delaware on January 31, 2001. Entropic Communications
is a leading fabless semiconductor company that designs, develops and markets semiconductor solutions to enable home entertainment. Our
technologies change the way traditional broadcast video, streaming video, and other multimedia content such as movies, music, games and
photos are brought into, distributed and processed throughout the home.

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying audited consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with United States generally accepted
accounting principles, or GAAP.

The accompanying audited consolidated financial statements include our accounts and those of our wholly-owned subsidiaries. All
inter-company accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

The accompanying audited consolidated financial statements include all adjustments, consisting of normal recurring accruals, which
we consider necessary for a fair presentation of the financial position and results of operations for the periods presented.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements and these accompanying notes. Among the significant estimates affecting the
consolidated financial statements are those related to business combinations, allowance for doubtful accounts, inventory reserves, long-
lived assets (including intangible assets), warranty reserves, accrued bonuses, income taxes, valuation of equity securities and stock-based
compensation. On an ongoing basis, management reviews its estimates based upon currently available information. Actual results could
differ materially from those estimates.

Foreign Currency Translation

The functional currency for our foreign subsidiaries is the local currency. Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated using the exchange rates on the balance sheet dates. Net revenues and expenses are translated using the average exchange rates
prevailing during the year. Any translation adjustments resulting from this process are shown as a component of accumulated other
comprehensive income within stockholders’ equity in the consolidated balance sheets. Foreign currency transaction gains and losses are
reported in operating expenses in the consolidated statements of operations.
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Derivative Financial Instruments

Our primary objective for holding derivative financial instruments is to hedge non-functional currency risks and to guarantee a
minimum fixed price in local currency. Our accounting policies for derivative financial instruments are based on the criteria for designation
of a hedging transaction as an accounting hedge, either as a cash flow or fair value hedge. A cash flow hedge refers to the hedge of the
exposure to variability in the cash flows of an asset or a liability, or of a forecasted transaction. A fair value hedge refers to the hedge of the
exposure to changes in fair value of an asset or a liability, or of an unrecognized firm commitment. The criteria for designating a derivative
as a hedge include the instrument’s effectiveness in risk reduction and, in most cases, a one-to-one matching of the derivative instrument to
its underlying transaction. Gains and losses from derivatives designated as fair value accounting hedges generally offset changes in the
values of the hedged assets or liabilities over the life of the hedge. We recognize gains and losses on derivatives that are not currently
designated as hedges for accounting purposes in earnings in other income, net. As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, we had no derivative
instruments designated as accounting hedges. As such, all gains and losses on derivatives for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013
were recognized in earnings.

Revenue Recognition

Our net revenues are generated principally by sales of our semiconductor solutions products.

We recognize product revenues when the following fundamental criteria are met: (i) persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists,
(ii) delivery has occurred or services have been rendered, (iii) the price to the customer is fixed or determinable and (iv) collection of the
resulting receivable is reasonably assured. These criteria are usually met at the time of product shipment; however, we do not recognize
revenue until all substantive customer acceptance requirements have been met, when applicable.

A portion of our sales are made through distributors, agents or customers acting as agents under agreements allowing for nonstandard
rights of return or other potential concessions. Net revenues on sales made through these distributors are not recognized until the
distributors ship the product to their customers.

Revenues derived from billing customers for shipping and handling costs are classified as a component of net revenues. Costs of
shipping and handling charged by suppliers are classified as a component of cost of net revenues.

We record reductions to net revenues for estimated product returns and pricing adjustments, such as competitive pricing programs, in
the same period that the related revenue is recorded. The amount of these reductions is based on historical sales returns and historical
participation in pricing programs and other factors known at the time. If actual returns or actual participation in pricing programs differ
significantly from our estimates, such differences would be recorded in our results of operations for the period in which the actual returns
become known or pricing programs terminate. To date, changes in estimated returns and pricing adjustments have not been material to net
revenues in any related period.

We provide rebates on our products to certain customers. At the time of the sale, we accrue 100% of the potential rebate as a
reduction to net revenue and, based on our historical experience rate, do not apply a breakage factor. The amount of these reductions is
based upon the terms included in various rebate agreements. We reverse the accrual for unclaimed rebate amounts as specific rebate
programs contractually end or when we believe unclaimed rebates are no longer subject to payment and will not be paid. For the years
ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, we reduced net revenue by $2.8 million, $2.0 million and $0.7 million, respectively, in
connection with our rebate programs.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject us to concentration of credit risk consist primarily of cash and cash equivalents,
marketable securities, accounts receivable and leases payable. Our policy is to place our cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities
with high quality financial institutions in order to limit our credit exposure. We extend credit to certain of our customers based on an
evaluation of the customer’s financial condition and a cash deposit is generally not required. We estimate potential losses on trade
receivables on an ongoing basis.

We maintain cash and cash equivalent accounts with Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, or FDIC, insured financial institutions.
In addition, certain of the our interest bearing collateral money market and savings accounts are each insured up to $250,000 by the FDIC.
Our exposure for amounts in excess of FDIC insured limits at December 31, 2014 was $16.8 million. We have not experienced any losses
in such accounts.
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We invest cash in deposits and money market funds with major financial institutions, U.S. government obligations and debt securities
of corporations with investment grade credit ratings in a variety of industries. It is our policy to invest in instruments that have a final
maturity of no longer than two years, and to maintain a portfolio weighted average maturity of no longer than 12 months.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash, money market funds and commercial paper. We consider all highly liquid investments with
a maturity of three months or less from the date of purchase that are readily convertible into cash to be cash equivalents.

Deferred Compensation

In June 2011, we implemented a non-qualified deferred compensation plan that permits certain key employees to defer portions of
their compensation, subject to annual deferral limits, and have it credited to one or more investment options in the plan. As of
December 31, 2014, we had marketable securities totaling $0.3 million related to investments in equity securities that are held in a rabbi
trust under our non-qualified deferred compensation plan. The total related deferred compensation liability was $0.3 million at
December 31, 2014, all of which was classified as non-current liabilities and is recorded in the consolidated balance sheets under other
long-term liabilities.

Marketable Securities

We account for marketable securities by determining the appropriate classification of such securities at the time of purchase and
reevaluating such classification as of each balance sheet date. As of December 31, 2014, we had classified $0.3 million of bank and time
deposits and $0.3 million held under our non-qualified deferred compensation plan as trading securities. Trading securities are bought and
held principally for the purpose of selling in the near term and are reported at fair value, with unrealized gains and losses included in
earnings. All other marketable securities were classified as available-for-sale. Cash equivalents and available-for-sale marketable securities
are reported at fair value with the related unrealized gains and losses included in accumulated other comprehensive income, a component of
stockholders’ equity, net of tax. The investments are adjusted for amortization of premiums and discounts to maturity and such
amortization is included in interest income. Realized gains and losses and declines in value judged to be other than temporary are
determined based on the specific identification method and are reported in the consolidated statements of operations.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying amounts of cash equivalents, marketable securities, trade receivables, accounts payable and other accrued liabilities
approximate fair value due to their relative short-term maturities. The fair value of marketable securities was determined using the quoted
market price for those securities. The carrying amounts of our long-term liabilities approximate their fair value.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

We evaluate the collectability of accounts receivable based on a combination of factors. In cases where we are aware of
circumstances that may impair a specific customer’s ability to meet its financial obligations subsequent to the original sale, we will record a
specific allowance against amounts due, and thereby reduce the net recognized receivable to the amount we reasonably believe will be
collected. For all other customers, we recognize allowances for doubtful accounts based upon specific identification, industry and
geographic concentrations, the current business environment and our historical experience. We recorded no allowance for doubtful
accounts as of December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out) or market. Lower of cost or market adjustments reduce the carrying value
of the related inventory and take into consideration reductions in sales prices, excess inventory levels and obsolete inventory. These
adjustments are calculated on a part-by-part basis and, in general, represent excess inventory value on hand compared to 12-month demand
projections. Once established, these adjustments are considered permanent and are not reversed until the related inventory is sold or
disposed.
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We make estimates about future customer demand for our products when establishing the appropriate reserve for excess and obsolete
inventory. We write down inventory that has become obsolete or unmarketable by an amount equal to the difference between the cost of
inventory and the estimated market value based on assumptions about future demand and market conditions. Inventory write downs are a
component of our product cost of goods sold. For the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, we recorded net charges for excess
and obsolete inventory of $0.2 million, $3.7 million and $0.4 million, respectively.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost and are depreciated using the straight - line method over the estimated useful lives of the
assets ( three to seven years ), except leasehold improvements and software which are amortized over the lesser of the estimated useful lives
of the asset or the remaining lease/license term.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

We record goodwill and other intangible assets based on the fair value of the assets acquired. In determining the fair value of the
assets acquired, we utilize accounting estimates and judgments to allocate the purchase price to the fair value of the net tangible and
intangible assets acquired. We use the discounted cash flow method to estimate the value of intangible assets acquired. The estimates used
to value and amortize intangible assets are consistent with the plans and estimates that we use to manage our business and are based on
available historical information and industry estimates and averages.

We assess goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets for impairment using fair value measurement techniques on an annual basis
during the fourth quarter of the year, or more frequently if indicators of impairment exist. We operate as one reporting unit. The goodwill
impairment test is a two-step process. The first step compares the reporting unit’s fair value to its net book value. If the fair value is less
than the book value, the second step of the test compares the implied fair value of the reporting unit’s goodwill with the carrying amount of
that goodwill. If the carrying amount of goodwill exceeds its implied fair value, we would recognize an impairment loss equal to that
excess amount. Determining the fair value of the implied goodwill is judgmental in nature and often involves the use of significant
estimates and assumptions. These estimates and assumptions could have a significant impact on whether or not an impairment charge is
recognized and also the magnitude of any such charge. Estimates of fair value are primarily determined using market comparisons. This
approach uses significant estimates and assumptions, including the determination of appropriate market comparables and whether a
premium or discount should be applied to comparables.

Investment in a Privately Held Company

Through the second quarter of 2013, we had accounted for our investment in Zenverge, Inc., or Zenverge, a privately held company,
under the equity method of accounting since we had exercised significant influence over the entity until this time as a result of our Chief
Executive Officer, or CEO, serving as a member of Zenverge’s board of directors, but we did not have the elements of control that would
require consolidation. The rights of the other investors were both protective and participating. Unless we were determined to be the primary
beneficiary, these rights precluded us from consolidating the investment. The investment was recorded initially at cost as an investment in
Zenverge, and subsequently was adjusted for equity in net income and cash contributions and distributions. As described in Note 2, in June
2013, we recorded an impairment charge of $4.8 million relating to our investment. During the quarter ended December 31, 2014,
Zenverge was sold, and we received no proceeds.

Warranty Accrual

We generally provide a warranty on our products for a period of one year; however, it may be longer for certain customers.
Accordingly, we establish provisions for estimated product warranty costs at the time revenue is recognized based upon our historical
activity and, additionally, for any known product warranty issues. Warranty provisions are recorded as a cost of net revenues. The
determination of such provisions requires us to make estimates of product return rates and expected costs to replace or rework the products
under warranty. When the actual product failure rates, cost of replacements and rework costs differ from our estimates, revisions to the
estimated warranty accrual are made. Actual claims are charged against the warranty reserve.
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Guarantees and Indemnifications

In the ordinary course of business, we have entered into agreements with customers that include indemnity provisions. To date, there
have been no known events or circumstances that have resulted in any significant costs related to these indemnification provisions and, as a
result, no liabilities have been recorded in the accompanying financial statements.

Software Development Costs

Software development costs are capitalized beginning when technological feasibility has been established and ending when a product
is available for sale to customers. To date, the period between achieving technological feasibility and when the software is made available
for sale to customers has been relatively short and software development costs qualifying for capitalization have not been significant. As
such, all software development costs have been expensed as incurred in research and development expense.

Stock-Based Compensation

We have equity incentive plans under which incentive stock options have been granted to employees and restricted stock units, or
RSUs, and non-qualified stock options have been granted to employees and non-employees. We also have an employee stock purchase plan
for all eligible employees.

Our stock-based compensation cost is measured at the grant date, based on the estimated fair value of the award using either the
Black-Scholes option pricing model for stock options with service-based vesting, Monte Carlo simulations for awards with market-based
vesting, or the grant date fair value of the stock on the date of the grant for RSUs, and is recognized as an expense over the employee’s
requisite service or performance period, as applicable. In June 2014, we granted performance stock units, or PSUs, to certain members of
our executive management team which vest over a three year period, subject to performance of our stock price (see Note 6). In July 2013,
we granted performance based equity awards which vest over a 15 month period, or earlier upon the achievement of certain milestones (see
Note 3). These awards fully vested prior to the achievement of the milestones. The stock-based compensation expense attributable to
awards under our 2007 Employee Stock Purchase Plan, or ESPP, was determined using the Black-Scholes option pricing model.

We recognize excess tax benefits associated with stock-based compensation to stockholders’ equity only when realized. When
assessing whether excess tax benefits relating to stock-based compensation have been realized, we follow the “with and without” approach
excluding any indirect effects to be realized until after the utilization of all other tax benefits available to us.

Income Taxes

We estimate income taxes based on the various jurisdictions where we conduct business. Significant judgment is required in
determining our worldwide income tax provision. We estimate the current tax liability and assess temporary differences that result from
differing treatments of certain items for tax and accounting purposes. These differences result in deferred tax assets and liabilities, which
are reflected in our balance sheets. We then assess the likelihood that deferred tax assets will be realized. A valuation allowance is
recorded when it is more likely than not that some of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. When a valuation allowance is established
or increased, we record a corresponding tax expense in our statements of operations. When a valuation allowance is decreased, we record
the corresponding tax benefit in our statements of operations. We review the need for a valuation allowance each interim period to reflect
uncertainties about whether we will be able to utilize deferred tax assets before they expire. The valuation allowance analysis is based on
estimates of taxable income for the jurisdictions in which we operate and the periods over which our deferred tax assets will be realizable.

We recognize and measure benefits for uncertain tax positions using a two-step approach. The first step is to evaluate the tax position
taken or expected to be taken in a tax return by determining if the weight of available evidence indicates that it is more likely than not that
the tax position will be sustained upon audit, including resolution of any related appeals or litigation processes. For tax positions that are
more likely than not of being sustained upon audit, the second step is to measure the tax benefit as the largest amount that has more than a
50% chance of being realized upon settlement. Significant judgment is required to evaluate uncertain tax positions. We evaluate uncertain
tax positions on a quarterly basis. The evaluations are based upon a number of factors, including changes in facts or circumstances, changes
in tax law, correspondence with tax authorities during the course of audits and effective settlement of audit issues.
 

F-11



Recently Issued Accounting Standards

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606). This ASU requires an entity
to recognize revenue from the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. In particular, this ASU addresses contracts with more than one
performance obligation, as well as the accounting for some costs to obtain or fulfill a contract with a customer, and provides for additional
disclosures with respect to revenues and cash flows arising from contracts with customers. This ASU will be effective beginning in the first
quarter of fiscal year 2017. Early adoption of this ASU is not permitted. The new revenue standard may be applied retrospectively to each
prior period presented or retrospectively with the cumulative effect recognized as of the date of adoption. We are currently evaluating the
impact of and method of adoption of this ASU on our financial statements.

In August 2014, the FASB issued guidance on the disclosure of uncertainties about an entity’s ability to continue as a going concern.
This standard provides guidance about management’s responsibility to evaluate whether there is substantial doubt about an entity’s ability
to continue as a going concern and to provide related footnote disclosures. The guidance is effective for annual reporting periods ending
after December 15, 2016, and early adoption is permitted. We expect to adopt this guidance on January 1, 2017. We do not expect the
adoption of this guidance to have any impact on our financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

There have been no other recent accounting standards, or changes in accounting standards, during the year ended December 31, 2014,
that are of material significance, or have potential material significance, to us.

 
2. Supplemental Financial Information

Marketable Securities

We have marketable securities and financial instruments that are classified as either available-for-sale or trading securities. As of
December 31, 2014, our short-term investment portfolio included $0.3 million of trading securities invested in a defined set of mutual funds
directed by the participants in our non-qualified deferred compensation plan. As of December 31, 2014 these securities had net unrealized
gains of $61,000 and a cost basis of $0.3 million. As of December 31, 2014, our short-term investment portfolio also included $0.3 million
of trading securities invested in principal and interest guaranteed bank and time deposit accounts.

The following tables summarize available-for-sale investments by security type as of December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013 (in
thousands):
 

   As of December 31, 2014  

   Cost    

Gross
Unrealized

Gains    

Gross
Unrealized

Losses    
Fair Market

Value  
Available-for-sale securities:         

Corporate notes/bonds, short-term    78,828    21    (30)   78,819  
Corporate notes/bonds, long-term    9,153    —      (27)   9,126  

        

Total $   87,981 $   21 $ (57) $   87,945  
        

 
   As of December 31, 2013  

   Cost    

Gross
Unrealized

Gains    

Gross
Unrealized

Losses    
Fair Market

Value  
Available-for-sale securities:         

Commercial paper   $ 7,493   $ 1   $ —     $ 7,494  
Corporate notes/bonds    63,591    48    (3)   63,636  

        

Total marketable securities, short-term  71,084  49  (3)  71,130  
        

Corporate notes/bonds, long-term  67,526  51  (43)  67,534  
U.S. treasury and agency notes/bonds, long-term  2,000  —    —    2,000  

        

Total $ 140,610 $ 100 $ (46) $ 140,664  
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Realized gains on our available-for-sale securities for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 were $3,000 and $50,000,
respectively. As of December 31, 2014, we had no available-for-sale securities that had been in a continuous unrealized loss position for a
period greater than 12 months.

We assess our marketable securities for impairment under the guidance provided by ASC Topic 320. Accordingly, we review the fair
value of our marketable securities at least quarterly to determine if declines in the fair value of individual securities are other-than-
temporary in nature. If we believe the decline in the fair value of an individual security is other-than-temporary, we write-down the
carrying value of the security to its estimated fair value, with a corresponding charge against operations. To determine if a decline in the
fair value of an investment is other-than-temporary, we consider several factors, including, among others, the period of time and extent to
which the estimated fair value has been less than cost, overall market conditions, the historical and projected future financial condition of
the issuer of the security and our ability and intent to hold the security for a period of time sufficient to allow for a recovery of the market
value. The unrealized losses related to our marketable securities held as of December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013 were primarily
caused by recent fluctuations in market interest rates, and not the credit quality of the issuer, and we have the ability and intent to hold these
securities until a recoveries of fair value, which may be at maturity. As a result, we do not believe these securities to be other-than-
temporarily impaired as of December 31, 2014.

The following table summarizes the contractual maturities of our available-for-sale securities (in thousands):
 

   As of December 31, 
   2014  
Less than one year   $ 78,819  
Due in one to five years    9,126  
Due after five years    —    

  

$ 87,945  
  

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

We determine a fair value measurement based on the assumptions a market participant would use in pricing an asset or liability.
Accounting Standards Codification, or ASC, 820 establishes a three-level hierarchy making a distinction between market participant
assumptions based on (i) unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in an active market (Level 1), (ii) quoted prices in
markets that are not active or inputs that are observable either directly or indirectly for substantially the full term of the asset or liability
(Level 2), and (iii) prices or valuation techniques that require inputs that are both unobservable and significant to the overall fair value
measurement (Level 3).

Cash equivalents consist primarily of bank deposits with third-party financial institutions, highly liquid money market securities and
commercial paper with original maturities at date of purchase of 90 days or less and are stated at cost which approximates fair value and
are classified as Level 1 assets.

Marketable securities are recorded at fair value, defined as the exit price in the principal market in which we would transact,
representing the amount that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants. Level 1 instruments are valued based on quoted market prices in active markets for identical instruments and include our
investments in money market and mutual funds. Level 2 securities are valued using quoted market prices for similar instruments, non-
binding market prices that are corroborated by observable market data, or discounted cash flow techniques and include our investments in
corporate bonds and notes, U.S. government agency securities, U.S. treasury bills, state and municipal bonds and commercial paper.

Our non-qualified deferred compensation plan liability is classified as a Level 1 liability within the hierarchy. The fair value of the
liability is directly related to the valuation of the short-term and long-term investments held in trust for the plan. Hence, the carrying value
of the non-qualified deferred compensation liability represents the fair value of the investment assets.

Level 3 instruments are valued based on unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and reflect our own
assumptions in measuring fair value. We have no assets classified as Level 3 instruments. There were no transfers between different levels
during the year ended December 31, 2014.
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The fair value measurements of our cash equivalents, marketable securities, employee stock-based compensation guarantees and non-
qualified deferred compensation plan consisted of the following as of December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013 (in thousands):
 

   Fair Value Measurements as of December 31, 2014  
   Total    Level 1    Level 2    Level 3  
Assets:         

Cash equivalents   $ 3,006   $ 3,006   $ —     $ —    
Short-term investments:         

Corporate notes/bonds    78,819    —      78,819    —    
Mutual funds    322    322    —      —    
Bank and time deposits    256    256    —      —    

Long-term investments:         
Corporate notes/bonds    9,126    —      9,126    —    

        

Total assets at fair value $ 91,529 $ 3,584 $ 87,945 $ —    
        

Liabilities:
Employee stock-based compensation guarantees $ 13 $ —   $ —   $ 13  
Non-qualified deferred compensation plan  322  322  —    —    

        

Total liabilities at fair value $ 335 $ 322 $ —   $ 13  
        

   Fair Value Measurements as of December 31, 2013  
   Total    Level 1    Level 2    Level 3  
Assets:         

Cash equivalents   $ 6,503   $ 6,503   $ —     $ —    
Short-term investments:         

Commercial paper    7,494    —      7,494    —    
Corporate notes/bonds    63,636    —      63,636    —    
Mutual funds    352    352    —      —    
Bank and time deposits    440    440    —      —    

Long-term investments:         
Corporate notes/bonds    67,534    —      67,534    —    
U.S. treasury and agency notes/bonds    2,000    —      2,000    —    

        

Total assets at fair value $ 147,959 $ 7,295 $ 140,664 $ —    
        

Liabilities:
Employee stock-based compensation guarantees  77  —    —    77  
Non-qualified deferred compensation plan  352  352  —    —    

        

Total liabilities at fair value $ 429 $ 352 $ —   $ 77  
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The following table represents the change in level 3 liabilities which relate to employee stock-based compensation guarantees (in
thousands):
 

   

Fair Value Measurement
Using Significant

Unobservable Inputs
(Level 3)  

   

Employee stock-based
compensation

guarantees  
Liability as of December 31, 2013   $ 77  

Adjustments to fair value    88  
Payments    (152) 

  

Liability as of December 31, 2014 $ 13  
  

The employee stock-based compensation guarantees represent compensation liability associated with certain RSU grants. Based on
the terms of these grants, a cash payment is required to be made in the event that the stock price at the date of vesting falls below the grant
date price. The fair value of this liability is evaluated quarterly using the Black-Scholes option pricing model which considers the potential
payout, the remaining time until payout, volatility of the underlying shares, and the risk-free interest rate to calculate the liability that may
be due under the arrangement.

Nonrecurring Fair Value Measurements

We measure certain assets and liabilities at fair value on a nonrecurring basis. These assets and liabilities include cost and equity
method investments when they are deemed to be other-than-temporarily impaired, assets acquired and liabilities assumed in an acquisition
or in a non-monetary exchange, operating lease termination liabilities and property, plant and equipment and intangible assets that are
written down to fair value when they are held for sale or determined to be impaired. During the year ended December 31, 2013, we
determined that we had incurred an other-than-temporary impairment of our investment in Zenverge, a privately held company, and we
wrote off the remainder of the investment of $4.8 million.

During the year ended December 31, 2014, accrued restructuring costs of $1.3 million related to operating lease terminations from our
June and November 2014 restructuring activity were valued using a discounted cash flow model using internal estimates and assumptions.
Significant assumptions used in determining the amount of the estimated liability include the estimated liabilities for future rental payments
on vacant facilities as of their respective cease-use dates and the discount rate utilized to determine the present value of the future expected
cash flows. If our assumptions regarding early terminations and the timing and amounts of sublease payments prove to be inaccurate, we
may be required to record additional losses or gains in our consolidated statements of operations. Given that the restructuring charges were
valued using our internal estimates using a discounted cash flow model, we have classified the accrued restructuring costs as Level 3 in the
fair value hierarchy.
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In connection with the November 2014 restructuring plan, we evaluated the carrying value of our intangible and long-lived assets as
of September 30, 2014 and during the quarter ended December 31, 2014. We recorded $12.7 million in asset impairment charges during the
year ended December 31, 2014 related to assets for which the carrying value may not be recoverable based upon our estimated future cash
flows.

We performed an analysis of our licensed intellectual property utilized in the production and development of the set-top box system-
on-a-chip, or STB SoC, assets, and because the majority of these technology licenses are not transferable and will have no useful
applications for our remaining operations, we recorded an impairment charge of $6.4 million during the year ended December 31, 2014
related to these licenses to reduce the carrying value of each affected asset to $0. Related to these licenses, we accrued $0.9 million as of
December 31, 2014 related to contractually committed payments for the licensed intellectual property for which we will receive no future
benefit. We additionally reviewed the in-process research and development, or IPR&D, related to the STB SoC assets and determined that
the technology related to certain of these assets will not be utilized in the foreseeable future and has no alternative future use to our
remaining operations, and we recorded an impairment charge of $1.6 million to reduce the carrying value of the IPR&D to $0.

Inventory

The components of inventory were as follows (in thousands):
 

   December 31, 2014   December 31, 2013 
Work in process   $ 5,432   $ 7,697  
Finished goods    4,972    5,806  

    

Total inventory $ 10,404 $ 13,503  
    

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consisted of the following (in thousands, except for years):
 

   
Useful Lives

(in years)   December 31, 2014   December 31, 2013 
Office and laboratory equipment   5   $ 21,538   $ 24,162  
Computer equipment   3 - 5    7,015    7,165  
Furniture and fixtures   3 - 7    2,630    2,353  
Leasehold improvements   Lease term   7,168    7,042  
Software   1 - 3    4,987    4,726  
Construction in progress      275    487  

      

 43,613  45,935  
Accumulated depreciation  (26,200)  (27,941) 

      

Property and equipment, net $ 17,413 $ 17,994  
      

Depreciation expense for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 was $7.3 million and $8.1 million, respectively.
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Investment in a Privately Held Company

In September 2011, we purchased shares of convertible preferred stock in Zenverge, a privately-held, venture capital funded
technology company, for a total investment cost of $10.0 million, which at the time of the investment represented a 16.3% equity interest in
the company. We also entered into a strategic partnership to co-develop an integrated chip that combines our MoCA functionality with this
entity’s independently developed technology. As a result of our joint development arrangement with this company and the appointment of
our CEO as a member of the company’s board of directors, we determined that the ability to exercise significant influence over the
company existed and, accordingly, we accounted for this investment following the equity method. The investment was recorded initially at
cost as an investment in a privately held company and was subsequently adjusted for our equity position in net operating results and cash
contributions and distributions. In addition, we recorded a charge relating to our proportionate ownership percentage of the premium paid
for our investment in excess of our share of their net worth. The fair value of this premium consisted of certain intangible asset and
goodwill values as determined by a valuation calculation. These intangible assets represented the excess of the book value as compared to
the valuation of Zenverge.

During the second quarter of 2013, we gave Zenverge notice of our intent to terminate the joint development arrangement and, in July
2013, our CEO resigned from the board of directors of Zenverge. As a result, we determined that the ability to exercise significant
influence over Zenverge no longer existed and we no longer accounted for the investment under the equity method. As such, we no longer
recognize any earnings from our investment in Zenverge.

Additionally, during the second quarter of 2013, our preferred stock investment was converted into common stock based on the terms
of a financing in which Zenverge raised additional funds where we did not participate. We then reviewed the available information to
determine if our investment in Zenverge’s common stock had indicators of possible impairment. As a result of the liquidation preferences
held by the remaining preferred stockholders, we concluded that our common stock investment did not have any value and as a result, we
had incurred an other-than-temporary impairment of our investment in Zenverge in June 2013, and we wrote off the remainder of the
investment of $4.8 million. During the quarter ended December 31, 2014, Zenverge was sold, and we received no proceeds.

Accrued Warranty

The following table presents a roll forward of our product warranty liability, which is included within accrued expenses and other
current liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets (in thousands):
 

   Years Ended December 31,  
   2014    2013  
Beginning balance   $ 50   $ 448  

Accruals for warranties issued during the period    103    135  
Settlements made during the period    (43)    (35) 
Change in estimated warranty rate    —      (445) 
Expirations    (67)    (53) 

    

Ending balance $ 43 $ 50  
    

Accrued Bonuses

During the year ended December 31, 2014 we received approval from our board of directors to allocate $1.0 million on a
discretionary basis to participants in the management bonus plan. The payment of the bonus is entirely discretionary and is not tied to
achievement of any operational, financial or business metrics. As of December 31, 2014 we had accrued $1.0 million for these management
bonuses which will be paid in 2015.

We maintained a discretionary management bonus plan in 2013. The potential bonus payments made under our plan were based
significantly on the achievement of operational, financial and business development objectives for the calendar year. As of December 31,
2013, no management bonuses were accrued or paid under this plan since the operational, financial and business development objectives
were not met in 2013.
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Restructuring Activity

In November 2014, our Board of Directors approved the implementation of a corporate restructuring plan. The restructuring plan
included discontinuing the development of new STB SoC products and the reduction, closure or consolidation of several global facilities
which were primarily involved in the development of new STB SoC products, including facilities located in Shanghai, China; Belfast,
Northern Ireland; and San Jose, California. Approximately 200 positions will be eliminated in connection with the restructuring plan,
representing about 40% of our work force.

In June 2014, we announced a corporate restructuring plan. The restructuring plan included the reduction, closure or consolidation of
several global facilities including facilities located in Austin, Texas; India; Taiwan and Israel. Approximately 150 positions were eliminated
in connection with the restructuring plan, which represented about 23% of our work force as of June 30, 2014.

In connection with these plans, we expect to incur total employee related charges of approximately $11.7 million consisting of
severance, retention and relocation costs. During the year ended December 31, 2014 we incurred $10.7 million in employee related charges
and we expect to incur an additional $1.0 million of employee related charges during 2015.

Our restructuring plans also include reducing capacity at, or vacating, certain facilities and terminating operating leases and other
contracts. We record these expenses as restructuring costs in the period when we cease to use rights conveyed by the related contract.
Additionally, costs such as attorney fees incurred as a result of this activity will be charged as restructuring costs as they are incurred. We
expect to incur a total of $2.1 million in facility exit costs and $0.4 million in contract termination costs. During the year ended
December 31, 2014 we incurred $1.3 million in facility exit costs and $0.4 million in contract termination costs, and we expect to incur an
additional $0.8 million of facility exit costs during 2015.

In connection with the restructuring we have recorded $12.7 million in asset impairment charges related to assets for which the
carrying value may not be recoverable based upon our estimated future cash flows.

Further, as a result of the restructuring plan, we no longer intend to permanently reinvest the undistributed earnings of certain foreign
subsidiaries. No tax on the undistributed earnings has been provided for as we maintain a full valuation allowance against our deferred tax
assets.

Total cash payments related to the restructuring plans are expected to be approximately $14.2 million. As of December 31, 2014, $8.3
million in cash payments had been made in connection with the plans.

In order to rebalance our operations in an attempt to leverage synergies from our acquisitions and to refine our business operations, we
implemented two operational restructuring plans in 2012 and 2013. As a result of these activities, we recorded a restructuring charge of $1.7
million in the year ended December 31, 2013. This plan resulted in a reduction of our personnel by 66 employees or approximately 10% of
our workforce. In November 2012, we incurred a restructuring charge of $0.9 million, which resulted in a reduction of our personnel by 40
employees or approximately 6% of our workforce.

The above costs are recorded in the “Restructuring charges” line of our consolidated statements of operations.
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The following table presents a rollforward of our restructuring liability as of December 31, 2014 which is included in accrued
expenses and other current liabilities and accrued payroll and benefits in our consolidated balance sheets (in thousands):
 

   
Operating Lease

Commitments    
Employee

Separation Expenses   
Cancelled Contract

Obligation    Total  
Liability as of January 1, 2012   $ —     $ —     $ —     $ —    

Restructuring charges    —      897    —      897  
Cash payments    —      (363)   —      (363) 

        

Liability as of December 31, 2012  —    534  —    534  
Restructuring charges  —    1,694  —    1,694  
Cash payments  —    (2,228)  —    (2,228) 

        

Liability as of December 31, 2013  —    —    —    —    
Restructuring charges  1,320  10,654  401  12,375  
Non-cash charges  403  —    —    403  
Cash payments  (221)  (8,100)  —    (8,321) 

        

Liability as of December 31, 2014 $ 1,502 $ 2,554 $ 401 $ 4,457  
        

Deferred Compensation

We have a non-qualified deferred compensation plan that permits certain key employees to defer portions of their compensation,
subject to annual deferral limits, and have it credited to one or more investment options in the plan. At December 31, 2014, we had
marketable securities totaling $0.3 million related to investments in equity securities that are held in a rabbi trust established under our non-
qualified deferred compensation plan. The total related deferred compensation liability was $0.3 million at December 31, 2014, all of
which was classified as a non-current liability and recorded in our consolidated balance sheets under other long-term liabilities.

Purchase Commitments

We had firm purchase order commitments for the acquisition of inventory as of December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013 of $17.0
million and $16.8 million, respectively.

 
3. Business Combinations

Mobius Semiconductor

On June 5, 2013, we acquired the assets of Mobius Semiconductor, Inc., or Mobius, a leading product development company focused
on low power, high performance analog mixed-signal semiconductor solutions for a total cash consideration of $13.0 million. The acquired
technology will enable Entropic to provide cable and satellite operators with solutions that encompass system designs that are low power,
broadband, high-speed, and which capture the full bandwidth of the signal payload - to drive more entertainment streams and IP services to
more connected devices in the home. This technology can also be leveraged by global satellite service providers to migrate to digital single-
wire communications.

In connection with the completion of the Mobius transaction, certain Mobius personnel entered into employment arrangements with
Entropic. On July 18, 2013 we granted RSUs for an aggregate 3.2 million shares of common stock as long-term retention grants to certain
employees of Mobius who joined Entropic. The RSUs had an estimated value of $14.0 million on the grant date. The terms of the RSUs for
approximately 0.9 million of the 3.2 million RSUs provided for full vesting upon either the achievement of certain milestones or over a 15
month period through August 2014 and the remaining 2.3 million RSUs vest over a 3 year period ending August 2016. These RSUs are
being accounted for as compensation expense over the vesting periods. The 0.9 million RSUs fully vested in August 2014 based on their
15 month vesting period and prior to the achievement of the performance based milestones.
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On the acquisition date, we allocated the total consideration to the following assets (in thousands):
 

   Allocation of Purchase Price 
Intangible assets   $ 12,239  
Goodwill    752  
Prepaid expenses    25  
Property and equipment, net    9  

  

Total purchase price $ 13,025  
  

The allocation of the purchase price to the net assets acquired and liabilities assumed resulted in the recognition of the following
intangible assets (in thousands, except for years):
 

   Amount    
Estimated Useful Life

(in years)  
In-process research and development   $12,136        * 
Non-compete agreement    103    2  

    

Total intangible assets $12,239 
    

 
* Upon completion of each project, the related IPR&D asset will be amortized over its estimated useful life. If any of the projects are

abandoned or the forecast of the project indicates that the fair value is less than the carrying amount, we will be required to write down
the related IPR&D asset.

Under the purchase method of accounting, the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities assumed were recognized and measured
as of the acquisition date based on their estimated fair values. In the determination of the fair value of the IPR&D various factors were
considered, such as future revenue contributions, additional licensing costs associated with the underlying technology, and contributory
asset charges. The fair value of the IPR&D was calculated using an income approach and the rate utilized to discount net future cash flows
to their present values was based on a weighted average cost of capital of 21%. This discount rate was determined after considering our cost
of debt adjusted for a risk premium that market participants would require in an investment in companies that are at similar stages of
development as Mobius.

IPR&D will not be amortized until the product is complete, at which time it will be amortized over the estimated useful life of the
developed technology. The useful life of the IPR&D will be estimated as the period over which the asset is expected to contribute directly
or indirectly to our future cash flows. Up to the point that the product is complete, we will assess the IPR&D annually for impairment, or
more frequently if certain indicators are present.

The excess of the fair value of the total consideration over the estimated fair value of the net assets was recorded as goodwill. We
allocated $0.8 million of the total consideration to goodwill. We consider the acquired business an addition to our product development
effort and not an additional reporting unit or operating segment. The goodwill recognized is expected to be deductible for income tax
purposes.
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PLX Technology

On July 6, 2012, we acquired specific direct broadcast satellite intellectual property and corresponding technologies from PLX
Technology, Inc., or PLX, a leading global supplier of high-speed connectivity solutions enabling emerging data center architectures. The
purchased assets relate to the design and development of a digital channel stacking switch semiconductor product. The purchase price
included a one-time licensing fee for intellectual property which is related to the acquired assets. The total consideration for the net assets
and the licensing fee is up to $11.9 million, consisting of an initial cash payment of $6.9 million, which was paid to PLX in July 2012, and
additional consideration of up to $5.0 million payable upon the achievement of a technical product development milestone and a license
approval milestone. All acquisition costs related to the transaction were expensed as incurred. The total acquisition date fair value of the
consideration was estimated at $10.0 million as follows (in thousands):
 

Initial cash payment to PLX $6,874  
Estimated fair value of contingent milestone consideration  3,100  

  

Total purchase price $9,974  
  

On the acquisition date, a liability was recognized for an estimate of the acquisition date fair value of the contingent milestone
consideration based on the probability of achieving the milestones and the probability-weighted discount on cash flows. Any change in the
fair value of the contingent milestone consideration subsequent to the acquisition date is recognized in the statements of operations. During
the year ended December 31, 2012, we reassessed the fair value of the remaining contingent consideration at $3.5 million and recorded the
increase of $0.4 million in the fair value of the remaining contingent consideration. In November 2012 we agreed to settle the first
milestone and $3.4 million of additional consideration was paid.

This fair value measurement of the contingent consideration is based on significant inputs not observed in the market and thus
represents a Level 3 measurement. Level 3 instruments are valued based on unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market
activity and reflect our own assumptions in measuring fair value. In June 2013, we reassessed the likelihood of achieving the second
milestone and determined that the milestone would not be achieved. As such, we reversed the remaining $0.1 million accrual related to the
fair value of the contingent milestone during the second quarter of 2013.

On the acquisition date, we allocated the total consideration to the following assets (in thousands):
 

   
Allocation of Purchase

Price  
Property and equipment, net   $ 241  
Intangible assets    9,200  
Goodwill    652  
Employee compensation liabilities    (119) 

  

Total purchase price $ 9,974  
  

The allocation of the purchase price to the net assets acquired and liabilities assumed resulted in the recognition of the following
intangible assets (in thousands, except for years):
 

   Amount   
Estimated Useful Life

(in years)  
In-process research and development   $ 6,200        * 
Customer relationships    2,900    7  
Non-compete agreement    100    2  

    

Total intangible assets $ 9,200 
    

 
* Upon completion of the project, we began amortizing the related developed technology asset over its estimated useful life.
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Under the purchase method of accounting, the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities assumed were recognized and measured
as of the acquisition date based on their estimated fair values. In the determination of the fair value of the IPR&D, various factors were
considered, such as future revenue contributions, additional licensing costs associated with the underlying technology, and contributory
asset charges. The fair value of the IPR&D was calculated using an income approach and the rate utilized to discount net future cash flows
to their present values was based on a weighted average cost of capital of approximately 41%. This discount rate was determined after
considering our cost of debt adjusted for a risk premium that market participants would require in an investment in companies that are at
similar stages of development as PLX.

IPR&D will not be amortized until the product is complete, at which time it will be amortized over the estimated useful life of the
developed technology. The useful life of the IPR&D will be estimated as the period over which the asset is expected to contribute directly
or indirectly to our future cash flows. Up to the point that the product is complete, we will assess the IPR&D annually for impairment, or
more frequently if certain indicators are present.

The excess of the fair value of the total consideration over the estimated fair value of the net assets was recorded as goodwill. We
allocated $0.7 million of the total consideration to goodwill. We consider the acquired business an addition to our product development
effort and not an additional reporting unit or operating segment. The goodwill recognized is expected to be deductible for income tax
purposes.

STB Business

On April 12, 2012, we completed our acquisition of assets related to the Set-top Box, or STB, business of Trident Microsystems, Inc.
and certain of its subsidiaries, collectively Trident, for a purchase price of $74.1 million. The purchase price included working capital
assets of $24.4 million and assumed employee liabilities of $2.3 million, pursuant to the terms of our Asset Purchase Agreement with
Trident, dated January 18, 2012, as amended, or Purchase Agreement.

Pursuant to the Purchase Agreement, we acquired all of Trident’s specific STB business system-on-a-chip solutions, certain patents
and all other intellectual property owned by Trident, certain contracts and prepaid expenses, and certain tangible assets, accounts
receivable, inventory and equipment. Trident retained its digital television, PC television, audio and terrestrial demodulator businesses and
we licensed to Trident certain of the acquired patents and intellectual property for use in the retained businesses. We also acquired leased
facilities in Austin, Texas, San Diego, California, Belfast, Northern Ireland and Hyderabad, India and the right to use other facilities of
Trident under short term Facilities Use Agreements.

Our acquisition of the STB business from Trident has been accounted for under the acquisition method of accounting in accordance
with ASC Topic 805, “Business Combinations.” Under the acquisition method of accounting, the total purchase price was allocated to the
net tangible and intangible assets of the STB business in connection with our acquisition of the STB business from Trident, based on their
estimated fair values. During the first quarter of 2013 we finalized certain post-closing purchase price adjustments with Trident, resulting in
a $0.7 million reduction in the purchase price. This adjustment to the purchase price has been reflected as a reduction of goodwill.
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The allocation of the purchase price to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed was as follows (in thousands):
 

   
Allocation of Purchase

Price  
Accounts receivable   $ 8,066  
Prepaid inventory    4,310  
Inventories    7,091  
Prepaid expenses and other assets    4,966  
Property and equipment, net    2,433  
Other long term assets    125  
Intangible assets    46,200  
Goodwill    3,285  
Employee compensation liabilities    (2,342) 

  

Total purchase price $ 74,134  
  

The allocation of the purchase price to the net assets acquired and liabilities assumed resulted in the recognition of the following
intangible assets (in thousands, except for years):
 

   Amount    
Estimated Useful Life

(in years)  
Developed technology   $32,400    4  
In-process research and development    6,500        * 
Customer relationships    3,900    7  
Non-compete agreement    1,400    2  
Customer backlog    2,000    1  

    

Total intangible assets $46,200 
    

 
* Upon completion of each project, we began amortizing the related developed technology asset over its estimated useful life. Where

projects were abandoned or the forecast of the project indicated that the fair value was less than the carrying amount, we wrote down the
related IPR&D asset.

The fair value of the identified intangible assets acquired in connection with our acquisitions was estimated using an income
approach. Under the income approach, an intangible asset’s fair value is equal to the present value of future economic benefits to be
derived from ownership of the asset. Indications of value are developed by discounting future net cash flows to their present value at
market-based rates of return. The goodwill recognized as a result of our acquisitions was primarily attributable to the value of the
workforce that became our employees following the closing of the acquisitions. We consider the acquired business an addition to our
product development efforts and product offerings and not an additional reporting unit or operating segment. The goodwill recognized is
expected to be deductible for income tax purposes. The useful life of the intangible assets for amortization purposes was determined by
considering the period of expected cash flows used to measure the fair value of the intangible assets adjusted as appropriate for the entity-
specific factors including legal, regulatory, contractual, competitive economic or other factors that may limit the useful life of intangible
assets.

 
4. Goodwill and Intangible Assets

On June 5, 2013, we acquired the intellectual property assets of Mobius and recognized $0.8 million of goodwill in connection with
the acquisition.

On July 6, 2012, we acquired specific direct broadcast satellite intellectual property and corresponding technologies from PLX and
recognized $0.7 million of goodwill in connection with the acquisition.
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On April 12, 2012, we completed our acquisition of assets from Trident’s STB business and recognized $4.0 million of goodwill in
connection with the acquisition. During the year ended December 31, 2013, we finalized the acquisition related hold back payments with
Trident. The finalization of these amounts resulted in a decrease to goodwill of $0.7 million. As of December 31, 2014, the goodwill
related to the acquisition of Trident was $3.3 million.

Intangible assets consisted of the following (in thousands, except for years):
 

   

Estimated
Useful Life (in

years)    As of December 31, 2014  

       Gross    
Accumulated
Amortization   Net  

Developed technology    4    $43,475    $ (26,294)  $17,181  
In-process research and development        *    12,136     —      12,136  
Customer relationships    7     6,800     (2,551)   4,249  
Non-compete agreement    2     103     (81)   22  

        

Total intangible assets $62,514  $ (28,926) $33,588  
        

 

   

Estimated
Useful Life (in

years)    As of December 31, 2013  

       Gross    
Accumulated
Amortization   Net  

Developed technology    4    $43,475   $ (15,426)  $28,049  
In-process research and development        *    13,761    —      13,761  
Customer relationships    7     6,800    (1,579)   5,221  
Non-compete agreement    2     1,603    (1,308)   295  
Customer backlog    1     2,000    (2,000)   —    

        

Total intangible assets $67,639 $ (20,313) $47,326  
        

 
* Upon completion of each project, the related IPR&D asset will be amortized over its estimated useful life. If any of the projects are

abandoned or the forecast of the project indicates that the fair value is less than the carrying amount, we will be required to write down
the related IPR&D asset.

Amortization expense related to intangible assets was recorded as follows in our consolidated statements of operations (in thousands):
 

   Years Ended December 31,  
   2014    2013    2012  
Cost of revenues   $10,869   $ 9,598    5,828  
Amortization of intangibles    1,244    2,312    2,575  

      

Total amortization expense $12,113 $11,910 $8,403  
      

As of December 31, 2014, the estimated future amortization expense of intangible assets is as follows, excluding in-process research
and development intangible assets that have not reached technological feasibility (in thousands):
 

Years Ending December 31,   Estimated Amortization 
2015   $ 11,863  
2016    6,013  
2017    2,242  
2018    971  
2019    363  
Thereafter    —    

  

$ 21,452  
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In connection with the November 2014 restructuring plan discussed in Note 2, we evaluated the carrying value of our intangible and
long-lived assets as of September 30, 2014 and during the quarter ended December 31, 2014. We performed an analysis of our licensed
intellectual property utilized in the production and development of STB SoC assets, and because the majority of these technology licenses
are not transferable and will have no useful applications for our remaining operations, we recorded an impairment charge of $6.4 million
during the year ended December 31, 2014 related to these licenses to reduce the carrying value of each affected asset to $0. Related to these
licenses, we accrued $0.9 million as of December 31, 2014 related to contractually committed payments for the licensed intellectual
property for which we will receive no future benefit. We additionally reviewed the IPR&D related to the STB SoC assets and determined
that the technology related to certain of these assets will not be utilized in the foreseeable future and has no alternative future use to our
remaining operations, and we recorded an impairment charge of $1.6 million to reduce the carrying value of the IPR&D to $0.

The impairment charges were recorded in “Impairment of Assets” in our consolidated statements of operations for the year ended
December 31, 2014.

 
5. Commitments and Contingencies

We have multiple operating leases for facilities and software license agreements expiring through 2022. The terms of certain leases
provide for rental payments on a graduated scale. We recognize rent expense on a straight-line basis over the respective lease periods and
have accrued for rent expense incurred, but not paid. As of December 31, 2014, we had no outstanding capital leases.

The minimum future payments under all non-cancellable operating leases with an initial term of one year or more as of December 31,
2014 were as follows (in thousands):
 

Years Ending December 31,     
2015   $12,301  
2016    8,955  
2017    4,066  
2018    3,318  
2019    3,277  
Thereafter    7,196  

  

$39,113  
  

Operating lease expense for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 was $22.7 million, $17.7 million and $12.4 million,
respectively.

 
6. Stockholders’ Equity

Common Stock

We had 200,000,000 shares of common stock authorized and 90,904,000 shares of common stock issued and outstanding as of
December 31, 2014.

Preferred Stock

We are authorized to issue 10,000,000 shares of undesignated preferred stock at $0.001 par value per share. Our board of directors
may determine the rights, preferences, privileges, qualifications, limitations and restrictions granted or imposed upon any series of preferred
stock. As of December 31, 2014, no preferred stock was outstanding.
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Share Repurchase Program

In September 2013, our board of directors approved a share repurchase program authorizing us to repurchase up to $30.0 million of
our common stock. Purchases under this program may be made from time to time through 10b5-1 programs, open market purchases, or
privately negotiated transactions. The number of shares ultimately repurchased, and the timing of the purchases, depend on market
conditions, share price, and other factors. Purchases under this program were approved to be made until September 30, 2014, however, the
program could have been discontinued at any time.

During the year ended December 31, 2014, $14.1 million of purchases were made under this program. Total purchases made under
this program were $19.5 million as of December 31, 2014. All of the 4.7 million shares purchased under the program were retired in the
quarter ended December 31, 2014.

Equity Incentive Plans

We have in effect equity compensation plans under which incentive stock options, non-qualified stock options and restricted stock
units have been granted to employees, directors and consultants to purchase shares of our common stock at a price not less than the fair
market value of the stock at the date of grant except in the event of a business combination.

2012 Inducement Award Plan

Our 2012 Inducement Award Plan became effective April 8, 2012. This plan provides for the grant of non-statutory stock options,
restricted stock awards, RSUs, stock appreciation rights and other stock awards to eligible new employees or directors not previously
employed by us. As of December 31, 2014, there were 2,300,000 shares of common stock reserved under the 2012 Inducement Award
Plan.

2007 Equity Incentive Plan

Our 2007 Equity Incentive Plan, or the 2007 Plan, became effective upon the execution of the underwriting agreement in connection
with our initial public offering and replaced our 2001 Stock Option Plan, or the 2001 Plan. The 2007 Plan provides for the grant of
incentive and non-statutory stock options, restricted stock awards, restricted stock unit awards, stock appreciation rights, performance stock
awards and other forms of equity compensation, or collectively Stock Awards. As of December 31, 2014, there were 34,484,000 shares of
common stock reserved under the 2007 Plan. This share amount is automatically increased by the amount equal to the number of shares
subject to any outstanding option under the 2001 Plan that expires or is forfeited following the date that the 2007 Plan became effective. In
addition, the share reserve will automatically increase on January 1 of each year through 2017 by the lesser of 5% of the total number of
shares of common stock outstanding on December 31 of the preceding calendar year, 7,692,000 shares of common stock, or a lesser amount
of shares of common stock to be determined by the board of directors prior to the first day of the calendar year. Our board of directors may
amend or terminate the 2007 Plan at any time. Generally, options outstanding vest over periods not exceeding four years and are exercisable
for up to 10 years from the grant date. In January 2015, 4,545,000 shares of common stock, which was 5% of the outstanding shares of
common stock as of December 31, 2014, were added to the 2007 Plan.
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2007 Non-Employee Directors’ Plan

Our 2007 Non-Employee Directors’ Plan, or Directors’ Plan, became effective upon the execution of the underwriting agreement in
connection our initial public offering. As of December 31, 2014, an aggregate of 813,000 shares of common stock were reserved under the
Directors’ plan. This share amount will automatically increase on January 1 of each year through 2017 by an amount equal to the excess of:
the number of shares subject to options granted during the preceding calendar year, over the number of shares, if any, added back to the
share reserve during the preceding calendar year. Upon election to our board of directors, each non-employee director will receive an initial
grant of a non-qualified option to purchase 51,000 shares of our common stock, which will vest in 48 equal monthly installments. Further,
non-employee directors receive an automatic annual grant of a non-qualified option to purchase 13,000 shares of common stock, which will
vest in twelve equal monthly installments. The exercise price of any options granted to a non-employee director under the Directors’ Plan is
equal to the fair market value of our common stock on the date of the grant. The Directors’ Plan provides that options granted under the
plan will become fully vested and exercisable in the event of a change of control. In January 2015, 60,000 shares of common stock, which
was equal to the number of shares subject to grants made under the Directors’ Plan in 2014, less the shares added back from cancellations,
were added to the Directors’ Plan.

2007 Employee Stock Purchase Plan

Under the terms of our ESPP, all eligible employees may purchase shares of common stock at 85% of the lower of the fair market
value on the first date of each twelve -month offering period or the purchase date. Employees may authorize us to withhold up to 15% of
their compensation during any offering period, subject to certain limitations, to purchase shares of our common stock under the ESPP. The
ESPP authorized up to 8,879,000 shares of common stock for purchase by our employees as of December 31, 2014. The ESPP share
reserve will automatically increase on January 1 of each year through 2017 by the lesser of 1.5% of the total number of shares of common
stock outstanding on December 31 of the preceding calendar year, 2,308,000 shares of common stock, or a lesser amount of shares of
common stock to be determined by our board of directors prior to the first day of the calendar year. In January 2015, 1,364,000 shares of
common stock, which was 1.5% of the outstanding shares of common stock as of December 31, 2014, were added to the ESPP.

Combined Incentive Plan Activity

A summary of our stock option award activity and related information under our existing incentive plans for the years ended
December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 is set forth below.
 

   (in thousands, except per share data)  

   
Number of Stock

Options    
Weighted-Average

Exercise Price    
Aggregate Intrinsic

Value  
Outstanding as of December 31, 2011    11,071   $ 4.55   $ 16,171  

      

Granted  1,497  5.03 
Exercised  (938)  2.30 
Cancelled/forfeited/expired  (1,016)  5.31 

      

Outstanding as of December 31, 2012  10,614  4.74 $ 14,069  
      

Granted  1,166  4.16 
Exercised  (880)  1.71 
Cancelled/forfeited/expired  (1,245)  5.93 

      

Outstanding as of December 31, 2013  9,655  4.80 $ 8,072  
      

Granted  1,072  3.63 
Exercised  (357)  1.50 
Cancelled/forfeited/expired  (1,089)  5.34 

      

Outstanding as of December 31, 2014  9,281  4.73 $ 1,313  
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The weighted-average grant date fair value per share of employee stock options granted during the years ended December 31, 2014,
2013 and 2012 was $2.35, $2.97 and $3.52, respectively. Stock-based compensation expense associated with stock options related to
employees for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 was $6.0 million, $7.3 million and $8.6 million, respectively. The
weighted average remaining contractual term of options outstanding as of December 31, 2014 was 4.5 years. The total intrinsic value of
options exercised during the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 was $0.6 million, $2.5 million and $3.2 million, respectively.
Option exercises were settled with shares of common stock.

As of December 31, 2014, outstanding options to purchase 7,668,000 shares were exercisable with a weighted average exercise price
of $4.80 per share and an aggregate intrinsic value of $1.3 million. The weighted average remaining contractual term of options exercisable
as of December 31, 2014 was 4.0 years.

During the year ended December 31, 2014, 1,229,000 shares of our common stock were purchased through the ESPP which resulted
in proceeds to us of $3.3 million. Stock based compensation expense associated with the ESPP plan for the years ended December 31,
2014, 2013 and 2012, was $1.3 million, $1.4 million and $2.2 million, respectively.

Restricted stock unit activity for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 was as follows (in thousands, except per share
data):
 

   Restricted Stock Units Outstanding  

   
Number of

Shares    

Weighted Average
Grant-Date Fair Value

per Share  
Balance at December 31, 2011    626   $ 7.55  

Restricted stock units granted    3,064    4.52  
Restricted stock units cancelled    (261)   5.27  
Restricted stock units vested    (245)   6.76  

    

Balance at December 31, 2012  3,184  4.88  
Restricted stock units granted  5,472  4.31  
Restricted stock units cancelled  (722)  4.64  
Restricted stock units vested  (1,105)  4.38  

    

Balance at December 31, 2013  6,829  4.49  
Restricted stock units granted  1,926  3.34  
Restricted stock units cancelled  (1,751)  4.09  
Restricted stock units vested  (3,083)  4.50  

    

Balance at December 31, 2014  3,921  4.09  
    

Stock based compensation expense associated with the above restricted stock unit awards for the years ended December 31, 2014,
2013 and 2012 was $10.3 million, $8.1 million and $3.8 million, respectively.

During the year ended December 31, 2014, 1.6 million PSUs were granted to certain members of the executive management team.
The PSUs will be earned, if at all, based on our total shareholder return compared to that of a determined market index and over a three year
performance period. The PSUs will vest between 0% and 300% with the full vesting of 1.6 million shares earned only if our stock price
achieves a 90th percentile or higher ranking compared to the market index and the recipients of the PSUs remain employed through each
measurement period. No shares are vested below a 30th percentile ranking and approximately 0.5 million shares will vest upon the
attainment of a 50th percentile ranking, with vesting beginning at the 30th percentile floor. A portion of the shares vest annually upon the
achievement of the targets measured at two interim measurement periods.
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Performance stock unit activity for the year ended December 31, 2014 was as follows (in thousands, except per share data):
 

   Performance Stock Units Outstanding  

   
Number of

Shares    

Weighted Average
Grant-Date Fair Value

per Share  
Balance at December 31, 2013    —     $ —    

Performance stock units granted    1,610    3.34  
Performance stock units cancelled    (212)   3.34  

    

Balance at December 31, 2014  1,398  3.34  
    

Stock based compensation expense associated with the above performance stock unit awards for the year ended December 31, 2014
was $0.2 million.

As of December 31, 2014, we had 19,079,000 authorized shares available for future issuance under all of our equity incentive plans.

Stock-Based Compensation

Stock-based compensation expense recognized in our statements of operations for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and
2012 includes compensation expense for stock-based options and awards based on the grant date fair value. For options and awards granted
with service-based vesting, expenses are amortized under the straight-line method. Stock-based compensation expense recognized in the
statements of operations has been reduced for estimated forfeitures of options that are subject to vesting. Forfeitures are estimated at the
time of grant and revised, if necessary, in subsequent periods if actual forfeitures differ from those estimates.

We allocated stock-based compensation expense as follows (in thousands):
 

   Years Ended December 31,  
   2014    2013    2012  
Cost of net revenues   $ 429   $ 861   $ 828  
Research and development    10,707    9,829    7,428  
Sales and marketing    2,164    1,885    2,288  
General and administrative    4,471    4,199    4,273  

      

Total stock-based compensation expense $17,771 $16,774 $14,817  
      

Equity Incentive Plans

As part of our continual evaluation of the calculation of our stock-based compensation expense, we reviewed and updated our
forfeiture rate, expected term and volatility assumptions during the year ended December 31, 2014 and there was no significant impact. The
risk-free interest rate is based on zero coupon U.S. Treasury instruments with maturities similar to those of the expected term of the award
being valued. Through June 30, 2013, we used a combination of our historical experience, the contractual term and the average option term
of a comparable peer group to determine the expected life of our option grants. The peer group historical term was used due to the limited
trading history of our common stock. The estimated volatility incorporated historical volatility of similar entities whose share prices are
publicly available. Effective July 1, 2013, we no longer incorporated peer group data in determining our expected life and volatility
assumptions since we have sufficient trading history. The expected dividend yield was based on our expectation of not paying dividends on
common stock for the foreseeable future.
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The total fair value of options and awards vested for each of the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 was $20.3 million,
$12.7 million and $12.1 million, respectively. The fair value of stock options granted to employees and directors was estimated at the grant
date using the following assumptions:
 

   Years Ended December 31,
   2014   2013   2012
Expected life (years)   5.4 - 5.5   5.3 - 5.4   5.1 - 5.3
Risk-free interest rate   1.7% to 1.9%  0.8% to 1.5%  0.7% - 1.1%
Expected volatility   63% to 85%   89% to 90%   89% to 90%
Expected dividend yield   —   —   —

As of December 31, 2014, we estimated there were $14.6 million in total unrecognized compensation costs related to employee equity
incentive agreements, which are expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 1.1 years.

For the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, the fair value of expected shares to be issued under the ESPP was estimated
using the following assumptions:
 

   Years Ended December 31,
   2014   2013   2012
Expected life (years)   0.5 to 1.0   0.5 to 1.0   0.5 to 1.0
Risk-free interest rate   0.05% to 0.12%  0.08% to 0.19%  0.05% to 0.22%
Expected volatility   35% to 55%   39% to 84%   58% to 100%
Expected dividend yield   —   —   —

As of December 31, 2014 we estimated there were $0.5 million of unrecognized compensation costs related to the shares expected to
be purchased through the ESPP, which are expected to be recognized over a remaining weighted-average period of 0.4 years.

Shares Reserved for Future Issuance

The following shares of common stock are reserved for future issuance (in thousands):
 

   As of December 31,  
   2014    2013  
Exercise of stock awards issued and outstanding    14,600     16,484  
Authorized for grants under equity incentive plans    19,079     15,904  

    

Total  33,679   32,388  
    

 
7. Net (Loss) Income Per Common Share

We compute basic net (loss) income per share of common stock by dividing net (loss) income by the weighted average number of
shares of common stock outstanding for the period. Diluted net (loss) income per share is computed using the weighted average number of
shares of common stock and dilutive common equivalent shares outstanding for the period. Common equivalent shares from stock options
and other common stock equivalents are excluded from the computation when their effect is antidilutive.
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The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted net (loss) income per share for the periods indicated (in thousands,
except per share data):
 

   Years Ended December 31,  
   2014    2013    2012  
Numerator:       

      

Net (loss) income—basic and diluted $(98,124) $(66,154) $ 4,520  
      

Denominator:
      

Weighted average number of shares of common stock outstanding—
basic  89,783  90,494  88,164  

      

Effect of dilutive securities:
ESPP shares  —     —     68  
Stock award common share equivalents  —     —     2,132  

      

Weighted average number of shares of common stock outstanding—
diluted  89,783  90,494  90,364  

      

Net (loss) income per share—basic $ (1.09) $ (0.73) $ 0.05  
      

Net (loss) income per share—diluted $ (1.09) $ (0.73) $ 0.05  
      

For the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, potentially dilutive stock options and RSUs for 16.2 million, 15.2 million
and 6.1 million shares of our common stock, respectively, were outstanding but not included in the diluted net (loss) income per share
calculations because they would be antidilutive.

 
8. Derivative Instruments

Certain of our foreign operations have expenses transacted in currencies other than the U.S. dollar. In order to mitigate foreign
currency exchange risk, we use forward contracts to lock in exchange rates associated with a portion of our forecasted international
expenses. Our policy is to enter into foreign currency forward contracts with maturities generally less than 12 months that mitigate the
effect of rate fluctuations on certain local currency denominated operating expenses. All derivative instruments are recorded at fair value in
either prepaid expenses and other current assets or accrued liabilities. Gains or losses arising from the remeasurement of these contracts to
fair value each period are recorded in other income, net. We use quoted prices to value our derivative instruments. During the year ended
December 31, 2014 and 2013, we recorded a (loss) gain of $(0.2) million and $0.2 million, respectively, related to these fair value hedging
contracts. As of December 31, 2014, we had outstanding contracts to purchase $5.2 million of Chinese yuan which settle during the course
of the next 12 months.

 
9. Income Taxes

The domestic and international components of (loss) income before provision from income taxes are presented as follows (in
thousands):
 

   Years Ended December 31,  
   2014    2013    2012  
Domestic   $(100,086)  $(49,537)  $6,583  
International    3,049    3,787    2,094  

      

(Loss) income before taxes $ (97,037) $(45,750) $8,677  
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Income tax provision consists of the following (in thousands):
 

   Years Ended December 31,  
   2014    2013    2012  
Current:       

Federal   $ (665)   $ (5,508)   $ 6,839  
State    25    7    5  
Foreign    1,673    1,480    281  

      

Total current $1,033 $ (4,021) $ 7,125  
      

Deferred:
Federal $ 76 $24,407  $(2,968) 
State  —     —     —    
Foreign  (22)  18  —    

      

Total deferred  54  24,425  (2,968) 
      

Total income tax provision $1,087 $20,404  $ 4,157  
      

The following is a reconciliation of the expected statutory federal income tax (benefit) provision to our actual income tax provision
(in thousands):
 

   Years Ended December 31,  
   2014    2013    2012  
Tax computed at the federal statutory rate   $(33,963)  $(16,012)   $ 3,037  
State tax, net of federal benefit    (44)   (14)    7  
Permanent items    130    466    175  
Stock-based compensation    534    721    843  
Research credits    (1,637)   (7,962)    (3,572) 
Tax reserves    275    855    303  
Change in valuation allowance    32,070    42,621    3,530  
Difference in foreign tax rate    (329)   (285)    (188) 
Foreign unremitted earnings    2,838    —       —    
Foreign withholding tax    379    —       —    
Other    834    14    22  

      

Income tax provision $ 1,087 $ 20,404 $ 4,157  
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The significant components of our deferred tax assets and liabilities were comprised of the following at December 31, 2014 and 2013
(in thousands):
 

   As of December 31,  
   2014    2013  
Deferred tax assets:     

Research and development and other credits   $ 33,001   $ 30,200  
Acquired intangibles    9,013    13,432  
Stock-based compensation    13,463    10,120  
Capitalized research and development    14    311  
Net operating loss carryforwards    24,758    2,660  
Capital loss carryforward    3,505    —    
Other, net    5,604    3,513  

    

Total deferred tax assets  89,358  60,236  
Valuation allowance for deferred tax assets  (86,991)  (58,495) 
Deferred tax liabilities:

Depreciation and amortization  (2,612)  (1,932) 
    

Net deferred tax liabilities $ (245) $ (191) 
    

As of December 31, 2014, we had total federal and state net operating loss, or NOL, carryforwards of approximately $67.4 million
and $28.3 million, respectively. If not utilized, the federal and state NOL carryforwards will begin to expire in 2021 and 2015, respectively.

As of December 31, 2014, we had federal and state research and development, or R&D, tax credit carryforwards of approximately
$21.0 million and $22.3 million, respectively. The federal R&D tax credit carryforwards will begin to expire in 2021 unless previously
utilized. The California R&D tax credit will carryforward indefinitely.

We recognize excess tax benefits associated with the exercise of stock options directly to stockholders’ equity only when realized.
Accordingly, deferred tax assets are not recognized for NOL carryforwards resulting from excess tax benefits. As of December 31, 2014
and 2013, deferred tax assets do not include $1.4 million and $3.0 million, respectively, of these excess tax benefits from employee stock
option exercises that are a component of our NOL carryforwards. Additional paid-in capital will be increased up to an additional $1.4
million if such excess tax benefits are realized.

During the second quarter of 2013, we evaluated our gross deferred income tax assets, including an assessment of the cumulative
income or loss over the prior three-year period and future periods, to determine if a valuation allowance is required. After considering our
recent history of losses and management’s expectation of additional near-term losses, during the second quarter of 2013, we recorded a
valuation allowance of approximately $26.7 million on our gross deferred tax assets with a corresponding charge to our income tax
provision.

As of December 31, 2014, based on the weight of available evidence, we concluded that it is not more likely than not that the benefits
of federal and state deferred income tax assets will be realized. We have offset all federal and state deferred tax assets with a valuation
allowance, net of deferred tax liabilities related to indefinite-lived intangibles for which no future realization can be expected.
Additionally, we expect to realize $0.1 million of deferred tax assets with a net operating loss carryback in 2015.

The net change in the total valuation allowance was an increase of $28.5 million, $41.7 million and $3.5 million for the years ended
December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Pursuant to Sections 382 and 383 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, or the Internal Revenue Code, utilization of
NOLs and credit carryforwards may be subject to an annual limitation due to future ownership change limitations provided by the Internal
Revenue Code and similar state provisions. The tax benefits related to future utilization of federal and state NOLs and tax credit
carryforwards may be limited or lost if cumulative changes in ownership exceed 50% within any three-year period. Previous limitations due
to Section 382 have been reflected in the deferred tax assets at December 31, 2014 and 2013.
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As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, our unrecognized tax benefits totaled $12.6 million and $9.5 million, respectively, of which $9.4
million and $7.1 million, respectively, would impact the effective tax rate if recognized at a time when the valuation allowance no longer
exists.

The following table summarizes the activity related to our unrecognized tax benefits (in thousands):
 

Balance as of December 31, 2011 $ 7,551  
Increases related to current year tax positions  979  
Decreases related to prior year tax positions  (174) 

  

Balance as of December 31, 2012  8,356  
Increases related to current year tax positions  1,505  
Decreases related to prior year tax positions  (371) 

  

Balance as of December 31, 2013  9,490  
Increases related to current year tax positions  2,109  
Increases related to prior year tax positions  1,004  

  

Balance as of December 31, 2014 $12,603  
  

We do not expect unrecognized tax benefits to change significantly over the next 12 months.

We file income tax returns in the United States and in various state jurisdictions with varying statutes of limitations. We are no longer
subject to income tax examination by Federal and State tax authorities for years prior to 2011, however, NOL and R&D credit
carryforwards arising prior to that year are subject to adjustment. Our policy is to recognize interest expense and penalties related to income
tax matters as a component of income tax expense. As of December 31, 2014, the amount accrued for interest and penalties associated with
uncertain tax positions was nominal.

During the second quarter of 2014, we were notified by the Internal Revenue Service that our 2012 consolidated federal tax return is
currently under examination. It is possible that within the next twelve months, ongoing tax examinations in the U.S. may be resolved, that
new tax exams may commence and that other issues may be effectively settled. However, we are unable to make a reasonably reliable
estimate as to when or if cash settlements with taxing authorities may occur. Although audit outcomes and the timing of audit payments are
subject to uncertainty, we do not anticipate that the resolution of these tax matters or any events related thereto will result in a material
adverse change to our consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

In December 2012, we settled an income tax audit related to our Israeli subsidiary for the 2007 through 2010 tax years. As a result of
this settlement, we decreased our liability for unrecognized tax benefits during 2012 by approximately $0.2 million.

We have provided for U.S. income taxes and foreign withholding taxes on the cumulative unremitted earnings of non-U.S.
subsidiaries as future repatriation is possible. As of December 31, 2014, total unremitted earnings in excess of previously included income
were $6.3 million.

 
10. Employee Benefits

We have a defined contribution 401(k) plan for employees who are at least 21 years of age. Under the terms of the plan, employees
may make voluntary contributions as a percentage of compensation, but not in excess of the maximum amounts allowed under the Internal
Revenue Code. Our contributions to the plan are discretionary. During the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 we contributed
$0.7 million, $0.8 million and $0.7 million, respectively, to the plan.

Our Indian subsidiary had a gratuity plan and a compensated absence plan pursuant to which we were required to make payments. Our
liability for the gratuity plan was calculated based on the salary of employees multiplied by years of service. Our liability for the
compensated absence plan was calculated based on the daily salary of the employees multiplied by 30 days of compensated absence. Due
to the closure of our Indian subsidiary, the liabilities were fully paid as of December 31, 2014.
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11. Significant Customer, Vendor and Geographic Information

Customers

Based on direct shipments, customers that exceeded 10% of total net revenues or accounts receivable were as follows:
 
   Net Revenues   Accounts Receivable  
   Years Ended December 31,   As of December 31,  
   2014   2013   2012   2014   2013  
Actiontec Electronics, Inc.    13%     *     *     *     * 
CyberTAN Technology, Inc.    11%     *     *   18%     * 
Foxconn Electronics, Inc.    10%   16%     *   15%   12% 
Motorola Mobility, Inc.      *     *   13%    *     * 
MTI Laboratory, Inc.    11%     *     *   12%     * 
Wistron NeWeb Corporation    25%   18%   21%  28%   24% 
 
* Customer accounted for less than 10% of total net revenues or accounts receivable, as applicable, for the period indicated.

Vendors

Vendors that represented a significant portion of total purchases (exclusive of payroll and related costs) were as follows:
 

   Years Ended December 31,  
   2014   2013   2012  
Amkor Technology, Inc.      *     *   12% 
NXP Semiconductors      *     *   13% 
Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company, Ltd.    23%   20%   22% 
Tower Semiconductor Ltd.    10%     *     * 

 
* Vendor accounted for less than 10% of total purchases (exclusive of payroll and related costs) for the period indicated

Geographic Information

Net revenues are allocated to the geographic region based on the shipping destination of customer orders. Net revenues by geographic
region were as follows (in thousands):
 

   Years Ended December 31,  
   2014    2013    2012  
Asia   $178,773    $225,184   $281,425  
Europe    2,432     3,669    6,901  
United States    5,558     7,148    3,741  
North America, other    4,856     23,375    29,611  

      

Total $191,619  $259,376 $321,678  
      

As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, long-lived assets, which represent property, plant and equipment, net of accumulated
depreciation, and lease deposits, located outside of the United States were $5.4 million and $7.4 million, respectively.
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12. Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)

The following table presents certain quarterly financial data for the eight consecutive quarters ended December 31, 2014. The
unaudited quarterly information has been prepared on the same basis as the audited consolidated financial statements and, in the opinion of
management, includes all adjustments, consisting only of normal recurring adjustments, necessary for the fair presentation of this data. We
believe that our quarterly revenue, particularly the mix of revenue components, and operating results are likely to vary in the future. The
operating results for any quarter are not necessarily indicative of the operating results for any future period or for any full year.
 

   
Net

Revenues   
Gross
Profit    Net Loss   

Basic Net Loss
Per Share   

Diluted Net Loss
Per Share  

   (in thousands, except per share data)  
Year Ended December 31, 2014         

Fourth Quarter   $ 42,586   $21,082   $(25,385) $ (0.28) $ (0.28) 
Third Quarter    43,178    22,569    (27,637)  (0.31)  (0.31) 
Second Quarter    50,200    23,538    (21,849)  (0.24)  (0.24) 
First Quarter    55,655    26,062    (23,253)  (0.26)  (0.26) 

Year Ended December 31, 2013         
Fourth Quarter   $ 57,931   $27,794   $(11,902) $ (0.13) $ (0.13) 
Third Quarter    56,376    27,513    (11,935)  (0.13)  (0.13) 
Second Quarter    70,612    34,256    (39,913)  (0.44)  (0.44) 
First Quarter    74,457    34,839    (2,404)  (0.03)  (0.03) 

 
13. Legal Matters

From time to time, we may be subject to various legal proceedings and claims arising in the ordinary course of business. We assess
contingencies to determine the degree of probability and range of possible loss for potential accrual in our financial statements. An
estimated loss contingency is accrued in the financial statements if it is probable that a liability has been incurred and the amount of the
loss can be reasonably estimated.

Between February 9 and February 18, 2015, thirteen putative class-action lawsuits were filed challenging our proposed Merger with
MaxLinear, Inc., or MaxLinear, and related entities (the “Proposed Transaction”). Eleven actions were filed in the Court of Chancery for
the State of Delaware (captioned Langholz v. Entropic Communications, Inc., C.A. No. 10631-VCP;  Tomblin v. v. Entropic
Communications, Inc., C.A. No. 10632-VCP;  Crill v. v. Entropic Communications, Inc., C.A. No. 10640-VCP;  Wohl v. Entropic
Communications, Inc., C.A. No. 10644-VCP;  Parshall v. Entropic Communications, Inc., C.A. No. 10652-VCP;  Saggar v. Padval, C.A.
No. 10661-VCP; Iyer v. Tewksbury, C.A. No. 10665-VCP;  Respler v. Entropic Communications, Inc., C.A. No. 10669-VCP;  Gal v.
Entropic Communications, Inc., C.A. No. 10671-VCP;  Werbowsky v. Padval, C.A. No. 10673-VCP; and Agosti v. Entropic
Communications, Inc., C.A. No. 10676-VCP), and two actions were filed in the Superior Court for the State of California, County of San
Diego (captioned Krasinski v. Entropic Communications, Inc., Case No. 37-2015-00004613-CU-SL-CTL; and Khoury v. Entropic
Communications, Inc., Case No. 37-2015-00004737-CU-SL-CTL) (collectively, the “Stockholder Litigation”). The complaints in the
Stockholder Litigation name as defendants: (i) each member of our Board of Directors, (ii) the Company, and (iii) MaxLinear, Inc. and its
wholly-owned subsidiaries, Excalibur Acquisition Corporation and Excalibur Subsidiary, LLC. The plaintiffs in the Stockholder Litigation
allege that the our directors breached their fiduciary duties to our public stockholders by, among other things, (a) approving the Proposed
Transaction at an inadequate price, (b) implementing an unfair process, and (c) agreeing to certain deal protections that allegedly favor
MaxLinear and deter alternative bids. The plaintiffs also generally allege that the entity defendants aided and abetted the purported
breaches of fiduciary duty by the directors. The plaintiffs seek, among other things, an injunction against the consummation of the
proposed Merger and an award of costs and expenses, including a reasonable allowance for attorneys’ and experts’ fees. On February 12,
2015, plaintiffs in the Wohl action served their first set of requests for production of documents on defendants. On February 18, 2015,
plaintiffs in the Krasinski and Khoury actions filed requests for dismissal of each case. We intend to defend these lawsuits vigorously. It is
not possible to estimate a probable outcome or potential loss in the event an unfavorable outcome is achieved.
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14. Related Party Transactions

In February 2014, we entered into a contractor services agreement with Semitech Semiconductor Pty Ltd., or Semitech, a privately-
funded semiconductor company, to provide development consulting services to us. Our Senior Vice President of Global Marketing is a co-
founder, former Chief Executive Officer and current shareholder in Semitech. During the year ended December 31, 2014, we paid $0.2
million to Semitech.

 
15. Subsequent Event

On February 3, 2015, we entered into an Agreement and Plan of Merger and Reorganization with MaxLinear, a Delaware corporation,
pursuant to which MaxLinear agreed to acquire all of our outstanding capital stock in a combined stock and cash transaction valued at
approximately $287 million based on the closing stock price of MaxLinear’s Class A Common Stock on February 2, 2015. This proposed
transaction, hereinafter the Merger, would result in us merging with a subsidiary of MaxLinear and becoming a wholly-owned subsidiary of
MaxLinear. In connection with the Merger, all of our issued and outstanding shares of Common Stock, par value $0.001 per share, will be
cancelled and converted into the right to receive consideration per share consisting of (i) an amount in cash equal to $1.20, plus (ii) 0.2200
of a share of MaxLinear’s Class A Common Stock, par value $0.0001 per share, or the Stock Consideration, plus (iii) any cash payable in
lieu of fractional shares of MaxLinear’s Class A Common Stock otherwise issuable as Stock Consideration. The Merger is intended to
qualify as a tax-free reorganization under the provisions of Section 368(a) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. The
completion of the Merger is subject to the satisfaction or waiver of a number of closing conditions, including, among others, adoption of
the Merger Agreement by the holders of a majority of our outstanding Common Stock, approval of the issuance of the MaxLinear Class A
Common Stock by the stockholders of MaxLinear and the expiration or termination of the waiting period under the Hart-Scott-Rodino
Antitrust Improvements Act of 1976, as amended.
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SCHEDULE II—CONSOLIDATED VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

ENTROPIC COMMUNICATIONS, INC.

(in thousands)
 

Description   

Balance at
Beginning of

Year    

Charged to
Costs and
Expenses    Deductions  

Balance at
End of
Year  

Year Ended December 31, 2014        
Deducted from asset accounts:        

Allowance for doubtful accounts   $ —      $ 38   $ (38)  $ —    
Reserve for excess and obsolete inventory    3,708    364    (720)   3,352  

      

Total $ 3,708 $ 402 $ (758) $ 3,352  
      

Year Ended December 31, 2013
Deducted from asset accounts:

Allowance for doubtful accounts $ —    $ —    $ —    $ —    
Reserve for excess and obsolete inventory  3,315  3,466  (3,073)  3,708  

      

Total $ 3,315 $ 3,466 $ (3,073) $ 3,708  
      

Year Ended December 31, 2012
Deducted from asset accounts:

Allowance for doubtful accounts $ —    $ —    $ —    $ —    
Reserve for excess and obsolete inventory  3,284  349  (318)  3,315  

      

Total $ 3,284 $ 349 $ (318) $ 3,315  
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Exhibit 99.2

Explanatory Note

On April 30, 2015, MaxLinear, Inc. completed its previously announced acquisition of Entropic Communications, Inc. pursuant to the
terms of the Agreement and Plan of Merger and Reorganization, dated as of February 3, 2015, by and among MaxLinear, Entropic and
other parties named therein. MaxLinear paid approximately $111 million in cash and issued approximately 20.4 million shares of its Class
A Common Stock in connection with the acquisition. MaxLinear is filing the following pro forma combined financial statements, which
were originally included in MaxLinear’s Amendment No. 1 to its Registration Statement on Form S-4 filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on March 25, 2015 (the “Registration Statement”), pursuant to certain requirements set forth in Item 9.01 of Form
8-K. Any reference to the “joint proxy statement/prospectus” in the unaudited pro forma combined financial statements set forth below
means the joint proxy statement/prospectus filed by MaxLinear with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 30, 2015.

UNAUDITED PRO FORMA COMBINED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

On February 3, 2015, MaxLinear and Entropic entered into a merger agreement under which, subject to the conditions set forth in the
merger agreement, Excalibur Acquisition Corporation, a wholly-owned subsidiary of MaxLinear, will merge with and into Entropic and
Entropic will continue as the surviving corporation. As soon as practicable thereafter, Entropic will merge with and into Excalibur
Subsidiary, LLC, a wholly-owned subsidiary of MaxLinear, and Excalibur Subsidiary, LLC will continue as the surviving company and as
a wholly-owned subsidiary of MaxLinear. Under the terms of the merger agreement, at the effective time of the merger, each share of
Entropic common stock (other than excluded shares, which will be cancelled for no consideration) will be converted into the right to
receive $1.20 in cash, without interest and 0.2200 of a share of MaxLinear Class A common stock, and cash payable in lieu of any fractional
shares. The cash portion of the merger consideration will be derived from Entropic’s cash and, if necessary, MaxLinear’s cash, in
accordance with the terms of the merger agreement. Specifically, under the merger agreement, at or prior to the effective time, Entropic
will deposit with the exchange agent an aggregate amount of cash as directed by MaxLinear (not to exceed the aggregate amount of cash
then held by Entropic and its subsidiaries, less $10,000,000) and MaxLinear will deposit with the exchange agent an aggregate amount of
cash equal to the remaining amount of cash required to pay the cash portion of the merger consideration under the merger agreement.

The unaudited pro forma combined statements of operations for the year ended December 31, 2014 combines the historical consolidated
statements of operations of MaxLinear and Entropic, giving effect to the merger as if it had occurred on January 1, 2014. The unaudited pro
forma combined balance sheet as of December 31, 2014 combines the historical consolidated balance sheets of MaxLinear and Entropic,
giving effect to the merger as if it had occurred on December 31, 2014. The historical consolidated financial information has been adjusted
in the unaudited pro forma combined financial statements to give effect to pro forma events that are (i) directly attributable to the merger,
(ii) factually supportable, and (iii) with respect to the statements of operations, expected to have a continuing impact on the combined
results.

The unaudited pro forma combined financial statements should be read in conjunction with (i) the accompanying notes to the unaudited pro
forma combined financial statements; (ii) MaxLinear’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2014, which was
incorporated by reference into the joint proxy statement/prospectus; (iii) Entropic’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2014, which was incorporated by reference into the joint proxy statement/prospectus; and (iv) additional information that
was contained in, or incorporated by reference into, the joint proxy statement/prospectus.

The unaudited pro forma combined financial statements have been presented for informational purposes only. The pro forma information is
not necessarily indicative of what the combined company’s financial position or results of operations actually would have been had the
merger been completed as of the dates indicated. Since the unaudited pro forma combined financial statements have been prepared based
on preliminary estimates, the final amounts recorded at the date of the merger may differ materially from the information presented. These
estimates are subject to change pending further review of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed. In addition, the unaudited pro forma
combined financial information does not purport to project the future financial position or operating results of the combined company.
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MaxLinear and Entropic
Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Statement of Operations

For the Year Ended December 31, 2014
(in thousands, except per share data)

 
   Historical   Pro

Forma
Adjustments  

  
Pro Forma
Combined     MaxLinear  Entropic     

Net revenue   $ 133,112   $191,619      $ 324,731  
Cost of net revenue    51,154    98,368    (4,689)   A     144,833  

    

Gross profit  81,958   93,251   179,898  
Operating expenses:

Research and development  56,625   117,234   180   A   174,039  
Selling, general and administrative  34,191   61,560   16,866   A   112,617  
Restructuring charges  —     12,375   12,375  

    

Total operating expenses  90,816   191,169   299,031  
    

Loss from operations  (8,858)  (97,918)  (119,133) 
Interest income  236   611   847  
Interest expense  (15)  (27)  (42)
Other income (expense), net  (108)  297   189  

    

Loss before income taxes  (8,745)  (97,037)  (118,139)
Provision (benefit) for income taxes  (1,704)  1,087   B   (617)

    

Net loss $ (7,041) $ (98,124) $(117,522)
    

Net loss per share, basic and diluted $ (0.19) $ (2.08) 
    

Shares used in computing net loss per share, basic and diluted  36,472   19,999   C   56,471  
    

See the accompanying notes to the unaudited pro forma combined financial statements, which are an integral part of these statements. The
pro forma adjustments are explained in Note 7 –Adjustments to Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Statements of Operations.
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MaxLinear and Entropic
Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Balance Sheet

December 31, 2014
(in thousands, except per share data)

 
   Historical   

Pro Forma
Adjustments  

  Pro
Forma

Combined    MaxLinear  Entropic     
Assets        
Current assets:        

Cash and cash equivalents   $ 20,696   $ 17,307   $ (20,562)   A    $ 17,441  
Short-term investments    48,399    79,397   (79,397)   A     48,399  
Accounts receivable, net    18,523    27,795       46,318  
Inventory    10,858    10,404       21,262  
Prepaid expenses and other current assets    2,438    7,337    233    I     10,008  

    

Total current assets  100,914   142,240   143,428  
Property and equipment, net  12,441   17,413   29,854  
Long-term investments  10,256   9,126  (9,126)  A   10,256  
Intangible assets  10,386  33,588  57,812   B   101,786  
Goodwill  1,201  4,688  56,754  C   62,643  
Other long-term assets  513   3,860   (1,054)  I   3,319  

    

Total assets $ 135,711  $ 210,915  $351,286  
    

Liabilities and stockholders’ equity
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable $ 7,509  $ 7,210  $ 14,719  
Deferred revenue and deferred profit  3,612   141   3,753  
Accrued price protection liability  10,018   —   10,018  
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities  5,548   10,730   11,212   D, I   27,490  
Accrued compensation  6,559   8,387   14,946 

    

Total current liabilities  33,246   26,468   70,926  
Deferred rent  2,177   6,350   8,527  
Other long-term liabilities  1,186   1,837   (94)  I   2,929 
Commitments and contingencies
Stockholders’ equity:

Common stock  4   91   (89)  E   6  
Additional paid-in capital  177,912   505,900   (331,475)  F   352,337  
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)  (25)  175   (175)  G   (25) 
Accumulated deficit  (78,789)  (329,906)  325,281  H,D   (83,414)

    

Total stockholders’ equity  99,102   176,260   268,904  
    

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $ 135,711  $ 210,915  $351,286  
    

See the accompanying notes to the unaudited pro forma combined financial statements, which are an integral part of these statements. The
pro forma adjustments are explained in Note 8 – Adjustments to Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Balance Sheet.
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NOTES TO THE UNAUDITED PRO FORMA
COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Description of Transaction

Entropic Acquisition

On February 3, 2015, MaxLinear entered into an agreement and plan of merger and reorganization with Entropic, pursuant to which
MaxLinear agreed to acquire all of Entropic’s outstanding equity interests. Under the terms of the merger agreement, upon consummation
of the merger, all outstanding shares of capital stock of Entropic will be cancelled and converted into the right to receive merger
consideration with a value equal to approximately $275.1 million in the aggregate, subject to certain adjustments specified in the merger
agreement. Approximately $109.1 million of the acquisition consideration payable to Entropic stockholders will be payable in cash.
Approximately $166.0 million of the acquisition consideration will be comprised of a number of shares of MaxLinear’s Class A common
stock determined based on the exchange ratio of 0.2200. After applying the certain adjustments specified in the merger agreement, on a pro
forma basis as of December 31, 2014, the total consideration is approximately $283.5 million, consisting of approximately $109.1 million
in cash and approximately 20.0 million shares of MaxLinear’s Class A common stock (valued for purposes of these unaudited pro forma
financial statements at $166.0 million based on the closing price of MaxLinear’s Class A common stock on March 3, 2015 of $8.30).
MaxLinear will also assume certain of Entropic’s vested and unvested stock-based compensation awards for which $8.4 million will be
recognized as purchase consideration. The Entropic acquisition is structured such that Excalibur Acquisition Corporation, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of MaxLinear, will merge with and into Entropic and Entropic will continue as the surviving corporation. As soon as practicable
thereafter, Entropic will merge with and into Excalibur Subsidiary, LLC, a wholly-owned subsidiary of MaxLinear, and Excalibur
Subsidiary, LLC will continue as the surviving company and as a wholly-owned subsidiary of MaxLinear.

2. Basis of Presentation

The unaudited pro forma combined financial data was prepared in accordance with SEC Regulation S-X Article 11 and was based on
the historical financial statements of MaxLinear and Entropic. MaxLinear is not currently aware of any significant accounting policy
differences between MaxLinear and Entropic, but as further information becomes available such policy differences may be identified and
could result in significant differences from the unaudited combined pro forma financial statements.

The acquisition method of accounting is based on Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) Topic 805, Business Combinations,
which uses the fair value concepts defined in ASC Topic 820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures.

ASC Topic 805 requires, among other things, that assets and liabilities acquired be recognized at their fair values as of the acquisition
date. Financial statements of MaxLinear issued after completion of the Entropic acquisition will reflect such fair values, measured as of the
acquisition date, which may be different than the estimated fair values included in these unaudited pro forma combined financial
statements. In addition, ASC Topic 805 establishes that the consideration transferred be measured at the closing date of the Entropic
acquisition at the then-current fair value, which will likely result in acquisition consideration that is different from the amount assumed in
these unaudited pro forma combined financial statements.

ASC Topic 820 defines the term “fair value” and sets forth the valuation requirements for any asset or liability measured at fair value,
expands related disclosure requirements and specifies a hierarchy of valuation techniques based on the nature of the inputs used to develop
the fair value measures. Fair value is defined as “the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date.” This is an exit price concept for the valuation of the asset or liability. In
addition, market participants are assumed to be buyers and sellers unrelated to MaxLinear in the principal (or the
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most advantageous) market for the asset or liability. Fair value measurements for an asset assume the highest and best use by these market
participants. As a result of these standards, MaxLinear may be required to record assets which are not intended to be used or sold and/or to
value assets at fair value measures that do not reflect MaxLinear’s intended use of those assets. Many of these fair value measurements can
be highly subjective and it is also possible that other professionals, applying reasonable judgment to the same facts and circumstances,
could develop and support a range of alternative estimated amounts.

Under ASC 805, acquisition-related transaction costs (such as advisory, legal, valuation, other professional fees) are not included as a
component of acquisition consideration and are excluded from the unaudited pro forma combined statements of operations. Such costs will
be expensed in the historical statements of operations in the periods incurred. MaxLinear expects to incur total acquisition-related
transaction costs of approximately $4.6 million and Entropic expects to incur total acquisition-related transaction costs of approximately
$7.9 million. As discussed in Note 8 (D), the liabilities related to these costs have been included in the unaudited pro forma combined
balance sheet as of December 31, 2014.

3. Historical MaxLinear

Financial information of MaxLinear in the “Historical MaxLinear” column in the unaudited pro forma combined balance sheet
represents the historical consolidated balance sheet of MaxLinear as of December 31, 2014. Financial information presented in the
“Historical MaxLinear” column in the unaudited pro forma combined statement of operations represents the historical consolidated
statement of operations of MaxLinear for the 12 months ended December 31, 2014. Such financial information has been reclassified or
classified to conform to the historical presentation in Entropic’s consolidated financial statements as set forth below (in thousands). Unless
otherwise indicated, defined line items included in the footnotes have the meanings given to them in the historical financial statements of
MaxLinear.

Reclassification and classification of the unaudited combined pro forma balance sheet as of December 31, 2014
 

   
Before

Reclassification   Reclassification  
After

Reclassification 
Deferred rent   $ —      $ 2,177(i)  $ 2,177  
Other long-term liabilities    3,363     (2,177)(i)   1,186  

 
(i) Represents the reclassification of “Deferred rent” from the “Other long-term liabilities” line item in the table set forth above.

4. Historical Entropic

Financial information of Entropic in the “Historical Entropic” column in the unaudited pro forma combined balance sheet represents
the historical consolidated balance sheet of Entropic as of December 31, 2014. Financial information presented in the “Historical Entropic”
column in the unaudited pro forma combined statement of operations represents the historical consolidated statement of operations of
Entropic for the 12 months ended December 31, 2014. Such financial information has been reclassified or classified to conform to the
historical presentation in MaxLinear’s consolidated financial statements as set forth below (in thousands). Unless otherwise indicated,
defined line items included in the footnotes have the meanings given to them in the historical financial statements of Entropic.
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Reclassification and classification of the unaudited combined pro forma balance sheet as of December 31, 2014
 

   
Before

Reclassification   Reclassification  
After

Reclassification 
Deferred tax assets—long-term   $ 1,054    $ (1,054)(i)  $ —    
Other long-term assets    2,806     1,054(i)   3,860  
Deferred revenue and deferred profit    —       141(ii)   141  
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities    10,871    (141)(ii)   10,730  

 
(i) Represents the reclassification of “Other long-term assets” from the “Deferred tax assets—long-term” line item in the table set forth

above.
(ii) Represents the reclassification of “Deferred revenue and deferred profit” from the “Accrued expenses and other current liabilities” line

item in the table set forth above.
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Reclassifications and classification in the unaudited pro forma combined statement of operations for the year ended December 31, 2014
 

   
Before

Reclassification   Reclassification  
After

Reclassification 
Selling, general and administrative   $ —      $ 61,560(i)(ii)(iii)(iv)  $ 73,935  
Sales and marketing    24,371    (24,371)(ii)   —    
General and administrative    23,258     (23,258)(iii)   —    
Amortization of intangibles    1,244     (1,244)(i)   —    
Impairment of assets    12,687     (12,687)(iv)   —    

 
(i) Represents the reclassification of “Selling, general and administrative” of $1.2 million related to amortization of intangible assets.
(ii) Represents the reclassification of “Selling, general and administrative” of $24.4 million related to sales and marketing activities.
(iii) Represents the reclassification of “Selling, general and administrative” of $23.3 million related to general and administrative activities.
(iv) Represents the reclassification of “Selling, general and administrative” of $12.7 million related to the loss on disposals of fixed assets.

5. Estimate of Consideration Expected to be Transferred

The following is a preliminary estimate of consideration expected to be transferred to effect the Entropic acquisition:
 

   (In thousands) 
Estimated Acquisition Consideration(1)   

Cash   $ 109,085  
Fair value of MaxLinear Class A common stock to be issued    165,991  
Fair value of options to purchase MaxLinear Class A common stock and

restricted stock units(2)    8,436  
  

Estimated purchase price consideration $ 283,512  
  

 
(1) The estimated acquisition consideration reflected in these unaudited pro forma combined financial statements does not purport to

represent what the actual consideration transferred will be when the Entropic acquisition is completed. The acquisition consideration
will include approximately 20.0 million shares of MaxLinear Class A common stock valued at $166.0 million based on the closing
price of MaxLinear’s Class A common stock on March 3, 2015 of $8.30.

(2) The fair value of the MaxLinear equivalent stock options was estimated using the Black-Scholes valuation model utilizing the
assumptions noted below. The expected volatility of the MaxLinear stock price is based on the average historical volatility over the
expected term based on daily closing stock prices. The expected term of the option is based on the remaining vesting period and
contractual term of the options, using the simplified method of determining expected term as used by MaxLinear. The stock price
volatility and expected term are based on MaxLinear’s best estimates at this time, both of which impact the fair value of the option
calculated under the Black-Scholes methodology and, ultimately, the total consideration that will be recorded at the effective time of
the acquisition.
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Assumptions Used for the Valuation of MaxLinear Equivalent Stock Options:
 

Expected volatility  45.41%
Risk-free interest rate  0.86%
Expected term  2.61  
Dividend yield  0%

6. Estimate of Assets to be Acquired and Liabilities to be Assumed

The following is a preliminary estimate of the assets to be acquired and the liabilities to be assumed by MaxLinear in the acquisition,
reconciled to the estimate of consideration expected to be transferred:
 

Calculation of Net Assets Acquired   (In thousands) 
Net book value of assets acquired as of December 31, 2014   $ 138,228  
Adjustments:   
Identifiable intangible assets    91,400  
Entropic unpaid transaction costs    (7,885)
Deferred taxes    327  
Goodwill    61,442  

  

Net assets acquired $ 283,512  
  

The preliminary valuation of assets acquired and liabilities assumed performed for the purposes of these unaudited pro forma
combined financial statements was primarily limited to the preliminary identification and valuation of intangible assets. MaxLinear will
continue to refine its identification and valuation of assets to be acquired and the liabilities to be assumed as further information becomes
available. The goodwill recognized is attributable primarily to the acquired workforce, expected synergies, and other benefits that
MaxLinear believes will result from combining the operations of Entropic with the operations of MaxLinear.

The following is a discussion of the adjustments made to Entropic’s assets and liabilities in connection with the preparation of these
unaudited pro forma combined financial statements:

Identifiable Intangible Assets

At the Entropic acquisition date, identifiable intangible assets are required to be measured at fair value and these acquired assets
could include assets that are not intended to be used or sold or that are intended to be used in a manner other than their highest and best use.
For purposes of these unaudited pro forma combined financial statements, it is assumed that all assets will be used in a manner that
represents their highest and best use. Based on internal assessments as well as discussions with Entropic, MaxLinear identified the
following significant intangible assets: developed technology, in-process research and development (“IPR&D”), trademarks and trade
names, customer-related intangible and product backlog. For purposes of these unaudited pro forma combined financial statements, the fair
value of these intangible assets has been determined primarily using the “income approach,” which is a valuation technique that provides
an estimate of the fair value of an asset based on market participants’ expectations of the cash flows an asset would generate over its
remaining useful life. Some of the more significant assumptions inherent in the development of the identifiable intangible assets valuations,
from the perspective of a market participant, include the estimated net cash flows for each year for each project or product (including net
revenues, cost of sales, research and development costs, selling and marketing costs and working capital asset/contributory asset charges),
the appropriate discount rate to select in order to measure the risk inherent in each future cash flow stream, the assessment of each asset’s
life cycle, competitive trends impacting the asset and each cash flow stream as well as other factors. The major risks and uncertainties
associated with the timely and successful completion of the IPR&D projects include legal risk and regulatory risk. No assurances can be
given that the underlying assumptions used to prepare the discounted cash flow
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analysis will not change or the timely completion of each project to commercial success will occur. For these and other reasons, actual
results may vary significantly from estimated results. However, for the purposes of these unaudited pro forma combined financial
statements, using currently available information, and certain other high-level assumptions, the fair value of the identifiable intangible
assets were estimated by MaxLinear management to be as follows: developed technology of $61.8 million with a weighted-average useful
life of 10 years, in-process IPR&D of $5.1 million which is an indefinite lived intangible asset, trademarks and trade names of $1.8 million
with a weighted-average useful life of 10 years, customer-related intangible of $5.1 million with a weighted-average useful life of 10 years
and product backlog of $17.6 million with a weighted-average useful life of 0.75 years.

These preliminary estimates of fair value and weighted-average useful life will likely be different from the final acquisition
accounting, and the difference could have a material impact on the accompanying pro forma combined financial statements. Once
MaxLinear has full access to the specifics of Entropic’s intangible assets, additional insight will be gained that could impact: (1) the
intangible assets identified; (2) the estimated total value assigned to intangible assets; and (3) the estimated weighted-average useful life of
each category of intangible assets. The estimated intangible asset values and their useful lives could be impacted by a variety of factors that
may become known to MaxLinear only upon access to additional information and/or changes in such factors that may occur prior to the
effective time of the acquisition.

Inventory

Entropic’s inventory consists of raw materials, work in process, and finished goods. For purposes of these unaudited pro forma
combined financial statements, no adjustment has been made to the fair value of inventory as MaxLinear has limited knowledge as to the
specific details of the inventory in order to make adjustments to the value at this point in time. Once the transaction is completed,
MaxLinear will perform a valuation of inventory on hand at that time and a resulting step-up in value will be applied to Entropic inventory.

Other Assets/Liabilities

Adjustments to Entropic’s remaining assets and liabilities may also be necessary, however at this time MaxLinear has limited
knowledge as to the specific details and nature of those assets and liabilities necessary in order to make adjustments to those values.
However, since the majority of the remaining assets and liabilities are current assets and liabilities, MaxLinear believes that the
December 31, 2014 Entropic book values for these assets represent reasonable estimates of fair value or net realizable value, as applicable.
MaxLinear does not anticipate that the actual adjustments for these current assets and liabilities on the closing date will be materially
different. Once the transaction is complete, MaxLinear will perform a valuation of the property and equipment that could result in a
material difference from the book value.

Goodwill

Goodwill is calculated as the difference between the acquisition date fair value of the consideration expected to be transferred and the
fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed. Goodwill is not amortized but rather subject to an annual fair value impairment test.

7. Adjustments to Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Statements of Operations:

(A) Intangible Amortization – To reflect amortization of acquired finite-lived intangible assets based on their preliminary estimated
fair values and estimated average useful life, less the historical Entropic amortization expense. Also, see (B) in Note 8 – Adjustments to
Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Balance Sheet.

(B) Income Taxes – Entropic is anticipated to be in a net deferred tax asset position with a full valuation allowance against the
domestic deferred tax asset. No proforma adjustment for taxes has been reflected in the unaudited combined statement of operations.
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(C) Number of Shares Used in Per Share Calculations – To reflect the issuance of approximately 20.0 million shares of MaxLinear
Class A common stock per the merger agreement based on Entropic’s common stock outstanding of 90.9 million at December 31, 2014
multiplied by the exchange ratio of 0.2200. Although the exchange ratio is fixed, the number of shares to be issued is subject to the
Entropic shares outstanding as of the effective time of the merger. The impact of potential shares from the stock options and restricted stock
units issued as part of the Entropic acquisition is anti-dilutive for all periods presented.

8. Adjustments to Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Balance Sheet:

(A) Cash Consideration – To reflect the payment of $109.1 million cash consideration to effect the Entropic acquisition.

(B) Intangible Assets – To reflect the preliminary fair values of intangible assets acquired. These estimated fair values and the related
useful lives are considered preliminary and are subject to change. Accordingly, the estimates related to deferred taxes discussed at
(I) below are also subject to change. Changes in the fair value or useful lives of the acquired intangible assets may be material. For the
purposes of this proforma presentation, the developed technology, trademarks and trade names, customer-related intangible and product
backlog intangible assets are being amortized using the straight-line method. IPR&D intangible assets are indefinite-lived intangible assets
until the Company completes such assets and places them into production, at which time the assets will be amortized over their estimated
useful lives.

(C) Goodwill – To eliminate Entropic’s goodwill and reflect the preliminary estimate of goodwill of $61.4 million.

(D) Transaction Costs – To reflect estimated transaction costs remaining to be incurred related directly to the transaction of
approximately $12.5 million, including estimated investment banking, legal and accounting fees, and other external costs directly related to
the Entropic acquisition. Estimated remaining transaction costs for MaxLinear and Entropic are $4.6 million and $7.9 million, respectively.

(E) Common Stock – To eliminate Entropic common stock and reflect issuance of MaxLinear Class A common shares to effect the
acquisition.

(F) Additional Paid-in-capital – To reflect the following equity transactions in connection with the Entropic acquisition:
 

   (In thousands) 
Eliminate Entropic APIC   $ (505,900)
Estimated fair value of MaxLinear shares to be issued    165,991  
Par value of MaxLinear shares recorded within common stock    (2)
Estimated fair value of assumed stock options and RSUs deemed purchase

consideration    8,436  
  

Total $ (331,475) 
  

The “Estimated fair value of MaxLinear shares to be issued” was based on approximately 90.0 shares of Entropic’s common stock
outstanding as of December 31, 2014, multiplied by the exchange ratio of 0.2200 and the closing price of MaxLinear’s Class A common
stock on March 3, 2015 of $8.30. “Estimated fair value of assumed stock options and RSUs deemed purchase consideration” represents the
estimated aggregate fair value of MaxLinear’s replacement awards attributable to the service periods prior to the merger, which is
considered as part of purchase consideration, and was calculated based on Entropic’s equity awards outstanding as of December 31, 2014,
multiplied by the assumed exchange ratio of 0.362704 and estimated fair value of equity awards.
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The fair values of MaxLinear’s Class A common stock and equity awards were estimated based on MaxLinear’s closing Class A
common stock price on March 3, 2015 of $8.30 per share. A 25% increase in the price of MaxLinear’s Class A common stock would
increase the aggregate merger consideration by $41.5 million, and a 25% decrease in the price of MaxLinear’s common stock would
decrease the aggregate merger consideration by $41.5 million, both with a corresponding change to MaxLinear’s assets. The market price
of MaxLinear’s Class A common stock which Entropic shareholders will receive in the merger as a portion of the merger consideration
will continue to fluctuate from the date of this joint proxy statement/prospectus through the effective time of the merger and the final
valuation could differ significantly from the current estimates.

(G) Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income – To eliminate Entropic’s accumulated other comprehensive income.

(H) Accumulated Deficit – To eliminate Entropic’s historical accumulated deficit of $329.9 million and reflect the immediate impact
to MaxLinear’s accumulated deficit from the $4.6 million of transaction costs accrued by MaxLinear had the Entropic acquisition occurred
on December 31, 2014.

(I) Deferred Tax Asset – Entropic is anticipated to have a net deferred tax asset position with a full valuation allowance against the
domestic deferred tax. Entropic has a net deferred tax asset in their foreign jurisdictions. As a result of business combination accounting,
there was a reallocation of the valuation allowance among the current and deferred tax asset classification. It is anticipated that after
valuation, the net current deferred tax asset acquired will be $0.23 million and the net current deferred tax liability will be $0.23
million. These adjustments have been included in the unaudited pro forma combined balance sheet.
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